CITY OF FRANKLIN
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 4, 2015, 6:30 P.M.
COMMON COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FRANKLIN CITY HALL
0229 W. LOOMIS ROAD, FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
AGENDA*

I Call to Order and Roll Call.

II. 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin and the
Required Communications Letter from Clifton Larson Allen, LLP.

II.  Adjournment.

*Notice is given that a majority of the Finance Committec may attend this meeting to gather information about an
agenda itern over which the Finance Committee has decision-making responsibility. This may constitute a meeting of
the Finance Committee per State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, even though the Finance Committee will
not take formal action at this meeting.

[Note: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals
through appropriate aids and services. For additional information, contact the City Clerk’s office at (414)
425-7500.]



APPROVAL\ REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
Slw ) X COUNCIL ACTION May 4, 2015
REPORTS & 2014 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL ITEM NUMBER
REPORT OF THE CITY OF FRANKLIN AND THE B
RECOMMENDATIONS| o0 UIRED COMMUNICATIONS LETTER FROM AL
CLIFTON LARSON ALLEN, LLP CPA’S

The 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) will be presented by the Director of
Finance & Treasurer along with Jacob Lenell, partner of our audit firm, Clifton Larson Allen,
LLC CPA's.

The report was reviewed by the Finance Committee at their April 28, 2015 meeting. The Finance
Committee unanimously recommends acceptance of the report.

The CAFR report and the required communication letter from Clifton Larson Allen, LLC are attached.

Jacob Lenell, partner, will be available to answer questions from Common Council members
regarding the presentation or questions about the attached reports.

Upon acceptance of the report at the regular Common Council meeting, Clifton Larson Allen, LLC can
complete their work and issue a final report.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Motion to receive and place on file the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR),
and the required communications letter from Clifton Larson Allen, LLP, CPA’s.
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May 5, 2015

Citizens of Frankiin, Honorable Mavor and Commen Council members:

infroduction

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2014, is herehy submitfed. Siate [aw requires that sl local
governmenis with a population over 25,000 publish 8 compigte set of financial statements
that are presenied in conformity with general accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
audited in accordance with generally accepted audiiing standards by a firm of licensed
certified public accouniants.

This report consists of management’s represeniations concerning the finances of the City of
Frankiin (City}. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completensss
and refiability of all of the information presented in this eport. To provide a reasonable basis
for making these representations, management Q‘f the-Lity has established a comprehensive
internal control ramework that is designed b@h 4 protect the government's assels from
logs, thelf, or misuse and to compile sufﬁcsz‘t refiabie m&ormaton for the preparation of the
City's financial statermnents in conformit Ly ¢ Q\WJ %%:ause the cost of internal controis
shouid not outweigh the benefits, the ity B r%mswe framework of internal controls
has been designed {0 provide reas@naﬁié‘rqtﬁer ?,@m absolute assurance that the financial
statements will be free from matefial ?@iésggte ini. As management, we assert that, fo the
best of our knowledge and belief, iiass ﬁﬁfﬁ’ﬁq&i report is compiete and reliable in all material
respects. Al disclosures rsecessé?y ":% gﬁi’e the reader 1o gain an understanding of the
City's financial activities haveg‘bﬁ%n mcix.@ed in this report.

The City's financial statements hav;{“;een audited hy CiffonLarsonAilen LLP, & firm of
certified public accountants experienced in audiling governmental entities. The goal of the
independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the
City for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2014, are free of malerial misstatement. The
independent audit involves examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounis
and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management; and svaiuating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor conciuded, based upon the audit, that there was
reasonabie basis for rendering an ungualified opinion that the Cify's financial statements for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The
independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of the financial section of
this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MDRA). This letter of iransmitial is designed to complement the MD&A and should
be read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.



Mayor, Common Council and Citizens
May 5, 2015

City Profile

The City of Franklin, incorporated in 1858, is localed in the southwestern corner of
Milwaukee County. The Cily is 34.5 sauare miles in size and has a population of 35,702
Over the last ten years the Cily has experienced an average annual population increase of
1.5% per year. The cily is a residential community {73.8%) with a commercial and industrial
base (255%) it is considered to be one of the more desirable communities in the
Milwaukee metropdlitan area in which o live and work. The City provides z typical range of
municipal services for a suburban communily including police, fire protection, emergency
medical/paramedic. maintenance of streets and other infrastructure, tibrary, public health
services, recrestional acliviies, building inspeclion, zoning conirol, refuse collection,
recycling collection, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water services, both construction and
maintenance. The City is authorized to levy properly tax on real and personai properiy
located within ifs boundaries {c support the services provided.

The Cily operates under the mavor/councll form of governmeni. Policy making and
iegistative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of a mayor and six council
members. The goveming council is responsible, among other things, for passing
ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing commitiees and hiring a city aitorney. The
City's Mayor is responsibie for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing
council, for overseemg the day-to-day operations of th}g@govemmeni and for appointing the
heads of the varicus deparimenis. The Coungfl is Blected, by districl, on a non-partisan
basis. The Mayor and Councll membears s@@e staggered three-year terms. The City is
organized inio departments, headed by t&f& omal&:&p sinted by the Mayor or Director of
Administration and confirmed by the %ﬁ*n Ccﬁh‘n Numerous hoards, commissions
and commitiees aflow for cilizen involy ﬁ%o&té?ﬁment by providing a forum for policy
input to the Council and guzdance ‘%”th eg&%’i gnis. Library service is provided through &
separate Library Board that ?unc*iwng;ﬁ? ﬁdeﬁ fiment of the City and engages the Library
Director. Waler service is provi h\f;@ug%a;% separate Waler Ulility that funciions like a
department of the Cily. These té({{ aré‘és ’e%@refore have been included a5 an integral part of
the City’s financial statements The City so is financially accountable for a legally separate
Community Development Authority {ﬁ% hos’zty} The Authority's activilies are reported within
the City’s financial stalements. Additional information on the Authorily can be found in Note
1 in the noles to the financial siatements.

The budgetary process serves as the foundation of the City's financial planning and control
system. The objective of the budgetary process is io ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Common Council.
The preparation of a forecast for the existing programs for the following year is prepared
during July and August Deparimental requesis for personnel changes and new capital
outlay expenditures are made by the middle of August. The Mayor then reviews the forecast
including recommended personnel and capital cutlay expendifures and determines by mid
August the personnel and capital cuflay expendilures that will be included in the injtial
deparimental requested budgets. The departments take this information and submit their
requested budgets by the end of August. The budgets are reviewed and the Mayor submits
his recommended budget by the middle of Seplember. The Council reviews the
recommended budget and agrees on a proposed budget by mid October. The Coundil is
required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget in early November, and then
adopts a final budget in mid November. The adopted budgetl is prepared by fund, function
{e.g. Public Safety}, and depariment (e.g. Police). Transfers of appropriations hetween
funds, functions or department require the approval of the governing council. Budget-to-
actual compatisons are provided in this report for each governmental fund with an adopted
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May 5, 2015

hudget The General Fund comparison is presented in Exhiblt F as pait of the basic financial
stalements for the governmental funds and in Schedules 3 & 4 of the supplementary
information. For governmental funds other than the General Fund with adopted budgets, this
comparison is preseniad in the supplementary informaticn section of this report.

The information presented in the financial siatemenis is perhaps best understood when
considerad from the broader perspective of the environment that the Cily operates.

Economic Condition and Outiook

The economic activily in Franklin in both the residential and the non-residential sectors was
stable. New consiruction was lower in 2014 compared io 2013 as svidenced by reduced
consfruction permit revenues. Prospects in 2015 for residential, commercial and industriat
development are anficipated fo be on 2 par to 2014, with growih dependent upon the
development of new subdivisions and husiness parks.

Estimated actual property values have grown at an average annual rate of 2.1% since 2005.

The new growth net of TIF Districts was $46.8 million in 2014, $34.6 miliion in 2013, and

$19.2 million in 2012. The growth in 2015 is expected fo be in the $15 1o $20 million dollar

range reflecting the level of economic aclivity. The historical growth has sliowed the City to

maintain a relatively low municipal fax rate while still fg@ing the increased cost of senvices
P

required as a resuli of the City's growth. Py ;
o ]
a;\‘i’ L
Residential Growth & o

o PRy |
Over the past ten years, residential va{ga@i G ag\@w@ at an average annual rafe of 1.8%.

Lingering effecis of the economic si_qiﬁdc}@sa °wfif§(eg§growth from new construction in 2015
at about the same level as 20?4%@{1@@?{ ﬁﬁet?)ﬁ% City has the most developable tand in

the County and remamns aﬁractiv%%o@gﬁié@?& {aﬁ \otemiai residents.
Lgd R
7 o

SN
Comenercial and industrial G@%thiﬁ}r

Over the past ten vears, con%ﬁé;’ciai wéé?d industrial valuation has increased at an average
annual rate of 3.2%.

in 2005, two TIF Districts (#3 & #4) were established on the eastern side of the City. The two
districts have equalized value tex increments of $73 and $44 million, respectively.

Anticipated residential growth will continue to place demands on the commercial sector for
goods and services that, in tum, is expecied 1o continue the trend of commercial growth.
Expansion of the commercial and industrial {ax base is a goal of the City with respect to the
overall fax rale. Currently 73.8% of the City's property vaiue is residential compared to
75.7% ien years ago. Fuiure tax relief will need o come from industrial and commercial tax
base expansion.

Organizational and Service Growth

2014 was a year where overall revenue fell slightly short of projections. The one notabie
exceplion was investment earmings which benefited from Increased market values due to
generally falling interest rates. The growth in fund balance was achieved due to the under
spending in approved budgets by depariments.

2014 was not a Clty-wide property reassessmenti year. The last reassessment was done in
2010. A re-valuation was compieted in 2013. Performing revaluations on a regular basis is in
line with the Common Councit policy to schedule a revaluation every three years to keep
property values in line with current market values. The State delermined that the local

Page 3
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assessmenis afler reassessments were 93.7% of fair value. The estimated actual value of
Cily properties was approximately $3.8 billion.

The challenge for the operating departments in 2014 was io continue to maintain service
levels af a time of flat revenues and growth of 1.3% in new properties.

internal Confrols

The City’s internal control structure is subject to ongoing evalualion by management The
City is responsibie for ensuring that an adequate internal control siructure is in place fo
ensure comphiance with laws, regulations and good financial policies. The resulis of the
City's audit for the fiscat year ended December 31, 2014 provided no instances of materiat
weaknesses in the internal control structure or significant viclations of applicable laws or
regulations. As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, if the level of grant
expenditures sxceeds an established level, currently $500,000, a single audit of granis is
required. The City was ncotrequired to have a single audit of grants for 2014,

Financial Planning

Long range financial planning is in place, especiaily for the capital funds and debt service
funds, to ensure that resources are in place to meet committed projects and ensure that
there is adequate funding for projects prior {o their aggmai and that adequate funding is in
place for debt that has been or will be mcurred,_}@@sth an appmpnate pian for repayment.

\ {ﬂ%
Financial Policies %§x f{&"’ & L%
The City maintains policies on fund baﬁén \?e\{a}" qb% ;::0 icy, investiment policies, budget
forecasting policy and a capftaﬁzzatscm ;zc & policies, together with conservative
management, has served the C g}» ??veﬁfﬂ §1*= féi%nce of a fund balance enabled the fund
balance o be utilized in 2009 du ‘%?e tze decline and replenished in 2010 and 2011
when revenue stabilized. The C;Q; ﬁﬁ debt markets in 2014, for the first time since
2008, to finance two major cg&ﬁ@% pr e@?‘s Debt Service pianning has permitted a steadily
declining Debt Service levy sirice 200&3%

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
avwardsd a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report {CAFR]) for the year ended December 31, 2013,
The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance
with the htghest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.
This was the 22" consecutive vear that the City has received this award.

in order to be awarded a Cerlificate of Achievement, the City must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized CAFR whose conienis conform fo program standards.
Such report must satisfy both accounting principies generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable legal requiremeants.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a pericd of one year. We believe that our cusrent
CAFR continues fo meet the Ceriificate of Achievement Frogram’s requirements. We will be
submitting the CAFR io the GFQOA to determine its eligibility for g 2014 Certificate,

Acknowiedgmenis

Preparation of this reporf on a timely basis could not have been accomplished without the
efficient and dedicafed services of the Finance Depariment sfaff. Appreciation is also
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extended 1o all other City employees who condributed o ifs preparation. We also thank the
Mayor, Common Council, and Finance Comimittee for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the CHy in a responsible manner.

Respecifully submitied,

FPaul Rolzenberg, CPA
Director of Finance & Treasurer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Common Council
Ciy of Franklin, Wisconsin
Franklin, Wisconsin

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying finarncial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of Franklin, Wisconsin, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the budgetary
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended, and the refated notes fo the financial
statements, which colleclively comprise the enlify’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statemeyils

Management is responsible for the pre;saratioa:%ag ~Afair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting princinies gé’nemﬁy accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, impiement@iﬁ%in{,@ﬁ Q’ﬁ%&i@@enaﬁce of internal control relevant

to the preparation and fair presentation ¢ {"‘ @iﬁ}@éﬂé}?’mn{s that are free from material
O

missiatement, whether due to fraud or e.g@f. oot L e
o %:@ QQi\w
sy o s, o 42

Auditors’ Responsibitity B A ag s

Cur responsibility is to express cpin@g&%@ﬁhgg’ financial stalements based on our audif. We
conducted our audit in accordancs, Withauditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standairds regifite that we plan and perform the audit fo obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing proceduwres to obtain audit evidence about the amounis and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
siatements, whether due to fraud or error. in making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant fo the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriafe in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropristeness
of acccunting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate {o provide a
hasis for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial siatements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin as
of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the vear then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the City of Frankiin, Wisconsin's 2013 financial statements and we
axpressed an unmodified audii opinion on those financial statements in our report dated May 5,
2014, in our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented for the Water Utiiity
and Sanitary Sewer Utiily Enterprise Funds presented herein as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audiled financia! statements
from which it was derived.

Other Matters

Required Suppltementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Ststes of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules of funding progress on pages 12-25 and
75 be presented fo supplement the basic financial statemesds. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the)Governmental Accounting Standards
Board who considers it to be an essential part of fiftangi#l reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, egotiopic, @gf higtorical context. We have applied
ceriain limited procedures io the required si \"l \%@g?ﬁnﬁ?mation in accordance with auditing
siandards generally accepted in the United %{&tes;ﬁ‘f Atderica, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of Q?ﬁ,«%&%?ig}@f?@ﬁf riviation and comparing the information for
consistency with management's res?i@ﬁgg@"i%?ﬁw@umes, the basic financial statements, and
cther knowiedge we obtained during.edr gudit 8f the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any ag rée «fh the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient e{gfi@ence igi@xpress an opinion of provide any assurance.

Other information

Our audil was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial staiements that
coliectively comprise the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's basic financial statements. The combining
and individual fund financial stalemenis and schedules, listed in the fable of contenis are
presented for purpeses of additional analysis and are not a reguired part of the basic financia
statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly o the underlying
accounting and other records used o prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected o the audiling procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and cerlain additional procedures, inciuding comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generaily accepted in the United Siales of
America. In our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic finandial statements as a whole.

The introductory section and the siafistical lables have not been subjecled to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

10



Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May
5, 2015, on our consideration of the City of Franklin, Wisconsin's internal conirol over financial
reporting and on our tests of His compliance with cerfain provisions of laws, reguiations,
coniracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpoese of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and ihe result of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal contrel over financial reporting or on
compiiance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering City of Franklin, Wisconsin's infernal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
May B, 2615
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City of Frankiin, Wisconsin
Management's Discussion and Analysis
{Unaudited}

As management of the City of Franklin (Cily}, we offer readers of the Cily's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Cily for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014, We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with addilicnal information that we have furnished in our letter
of ransmitial, which can be found on pages 1-5 of this report.

Financial Highlighis

*

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities as of December 31, 2014, by $215,605,424
{net positionj. Of this amount, $12,864 250 {unrestricted net position) may be used to
meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

The City's total net position increased by a net amount of $5,214,378. Net investment in
capital assels increased by $781,868, while unrestricted net position increased by
$4,956,744 and restricted net position decreased by $524334. The increase in
investment in capital assels was related fo capital asset additions offset by increase in
debt, net of unspeni bond proceeds and @cc%giﬁ?azed depreciation. The unrestricted
increase was mainly due to the repaymeni-of noncapital debt. The restricted decrease
was due to use of development revenz.zgg@;f“\ &

The City's governmental funds repoﬁeé?“‘g&%ﬂié&eg%e; 31, 2014, combined ending fund
batances of $18,030,657, a decreas¥ of §749:620:5om the prior year.

The Nonspendabie fund balances W@?«e@zﬁgg%g?q an increase of $1,724,580 due fo

&

interfund advances from the Geiverairund todite Sewer Utility.

The restricted fund balances in tefal was $6,893,569 a decrease of $6,491,754, including
a decrease in resiricied for ggiﬁ s”?eﬁnqé of $6,255,707 and a decrease in Development
Funds of $881,829. Debt Sewice é’;aﬁ*’a $8,695,000 debt payment and the Development
funds transferred $873,727 to the Eﬁ?erpﬁse Funds.

The assigned fund balances in fotal of $4,906,729 had an increase of $2,115,618
resulting from proceeds of a $1,990,000 debt offering late in the year.

The unassigned fund balance as of December 31, 2014 for the generai fund was
36,148,771 or approximately 24 percent of iotal anticipated 2015 general fund
expenditures.

The City's Governmentai aclivities debt decreased by $4,945,0600. Repaymenis fotaled
$10,265,000, while a new issue added $5,320,000 In ouistanding Governmental activity
debt. The total general obligation debt that has to be repaid by the general taxpayer is
less than one guarter of one percent of the City's equalized valuation. See tabie 11 for
complete detaiis.

The City’'s Business-type aclivities approved the construction of an expanded Water &
Waste Water Facilities Building in Oclober, 2614, On December 18, 2014 the Water Fund
sold $1.290,000 of General Obligation 20 year Bonds fo finance a portion of that $3.2
miliion project.

Qverview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic
financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three components:
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1} government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial staiements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition fo
the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financiai statements

The governmeni-wide financial statements are designhed fo provide readers with a broad
overview of the City’'s finances, in a8 manner similar to a private-sector business. The
statement of net position presents information con all of the City's assels, deferred outflows,
liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between the categories reported as net
position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. Table 1 provides a ten
year history of Net Position.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of refated
cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenditures are reporied in this statement for some ffems
that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods {e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but
unused vacation and sick leave). Table 2 provides a ten year history of the statement of
activifies.

S
The government-wide financial slalements distiz;;guig‘fﬁ%nctims of the City that are principally
supported by iaxes and intergovernmenial @‘%V;ﬁﬁe {governmental activiies) from other
functions that are intended 1o recover ail %% significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-like activitieg) THe ermental activities of the City include
general government, public safety, pUbli€ -woiks,health & human services, cuifure &
recreation and conservation & develgpmefit. The hisiness-type activities include the Franklin
Water Utility and the Sanitary Sev@f?%‘ﬁa@f BN
mix“:“’\“ﬂ#’%?@ﬁ g;{w
The government-wide financial a&@%‘é&éﬁ*@jﬁﬁc[uée not only the City itself {known as the
primary government) but also 3 g@ga%iyﬂ’sr@%irate Community Development Authority for which
the Cily is financially accountéble. Fingacial information for this blended component unit is

reported as part of the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

73

The government-wide financial statements can be found on Exhibits A and B of this repori.
Fund financial statements

A fund 18 a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain conirol over rescurces that
have been segregated for specific aclivities or objectives. The City, like other state and locat
governments, uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided info three categories:
governmental funds, proprieiary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governments! funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essenlially the same functions reporied as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near
ferm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable
resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evatualing a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide
financial statements, it is useful o compare the information presented for governmentat funds

Page 13



with similar information presenied for governmental aclivilies in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better undersiand the long-term impact of the
govemment’s near-term financing decisions. Bath the governmental fund baiance sheet and
the governmenial fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances
provide a reconciliation io facildate this comparison between governmental funds and
gavernmental activities.

The City maintains 16 individual governmental funds. information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenue,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, Debt Service and TiF Districts
Funds, that are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 13 govemnmental
funds are combined into a singie, aggregated presentation. individual fund data for each of
these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements later in
this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits C, D, E and F of
this report. These statements inciude a budgetary comparison of the General Fund.

The Cily adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Library Operating Fund, Solid Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement
Fund, Street Improvement Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Sanitary
Sewer Fund and the Franklin Water Utility. A budgetary comparison statement has been

provided for ali governmenial funds {iemonstraﬁ;gg %é“;iﬁpiiance with their budgets.

%ﬁﬁ?«@ {i;@
AP S
@q;ég} i
Proprietary funds are used to report the same fgﬁc%év??s presented as business-type activities
in the government-wide ﬂ;‘aascéaiwgtﬁ%&‘tg@én%@ Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wigs figﬁn%@ statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements provide-gepagatecinformation for the Franklin Water Utility, the

. b ey
Sanitary 8 Fund f s e Fund.
anitary Sewer Fund and the Ezggg al é@@e un

Fos

Proprietary funds

The proprietary fund financial Stétemenfs can be found on Exhibits G, H & | of this report.
Fiduciary funds

Fiduciary funds are used 1o account for resources held for the benefit of parties ouiside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the rescurces of those funds are not available to support the City's programs. The
fiduciary funds maintained by the City are the Properly Tax Agency Fund, that records the tax
roli and tax coliections for the City and other taxing jurisdictions, an other agency fund to
record that aclivity and a post employment benefits trust fo hold funds until needed to pay
designated heaith benefits for eligible current and fulure retirces.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit J & K of this report.
Notes t{o the financial statements
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data

provided in the governmenf-wide and fund financial statements. The notes o the financial
siatements are found on pages 40 — 74 of this report.
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Cther information

In addition to the basic financial stalements, notes and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Franklin's
progress in funding its pension obligations {o its public works empioyees and its retiree health
obiigations 1o eligibie full ime employees. Required supplementary information can be found
on page 75 of this report.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and scheduies section presenis
combining statements in connection with non-major governmental funds, a detailed
budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with the
budget complementing the statement included in the basic governmental fund financial
statements, and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately
following the required supplementary information. Schedules 1 to 12.2 can be found on
pages 76 — 95 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's
financial position. In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $215,605,434 and
$210,391,056 at the end of 2014 and 2013, respect;\s%i:g%

CITY OF FRANK@"N ;@E’T POSITION
Eecembealﬁ‘f 2%““3 4 aﬁd 2@‘!3

o S ST P
: SR
Govemmental _ ~ o s Busitiess-type
Activiies 5 B P 5 Activitios Totat
24 '13,;\-&}“““ e ’;{@{4 2013 2014 2043

Current and \f;;?” \@x ‘{}{;
other assats $ 49838585 $ Q} 4956“62%5% 54767 § 4478841 § 54783352 ¢ 53968503
Long term Note Rec % Q‘sg} 26,055,831 25 451 3856 26 055 931 25,451,385
Capilal aszels 114,884 694 114,468, 5{}8 88 567 257 88095 184 203,451,944 203 564 592

TFotal assels 164 523 268 163,965 170 119,767 855 {18017 418 ‘ 264,291 224 282 8872 580
Daterred Ouiflows 163.578 187,474 - - 163,578 187,474
Cuarent liabilities 3,781,961 2,180 414 3,238972 1,441.237 7,012,933 3,621.851
Long-term liabififins 13,751,688 14,7308 576 23 844,538 25,185 917 37,422 144 44,924 493

Total Eahiities 17,563 587 21,828 930 26 471 510 28677 154 44 435,077 48 556 144
Delerred inflows 24,414 291 24 202 B54 - - 24 414 294 24 222 {154
MNeat position:
Net invesiment in

capital assels 106,031,877 104,721,982 88,567,257 £6,0685,184 104,500 134 193 817,186

Restricled 7,828,452 3,289 414 313,558 2771230 & 142,010 8,666,344
Unrestricted 3.548.680 4,883 704 4 015,630 3017842 12 864 200 7 907 548

Tolal net position

$ 122 70B 836

$ 113,600,800

$  82.856445

3 92300256 § 215605434

§ 210391056

Page 15



The largest porfion of the City’s net position (approximately 50 and 92 percent, in 2014 and
2013, respectively) reflects its investment in capital assels {e.g., land, buildings, machinery,
and equipment); less any related debt used 1o acquire those assets that is still cutstanding.
The City uses these capital assets fo provide services to citizens; consequently, net position
is not avaiiable for future spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assels is
reporied net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed fo repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since capital asssis themselves cannot be used to
liguidate these liabilities

Investment in capital assets accounted for $184,599,134 and $193,817.164 in 2014 and
2013, respectively of the year end net position. The changes in capital asseis were as
foliows:

Net Change Net
Capilal Asset in Capital Increase
Additions Depreciation Related Debt  (Decrease}

2014 § 4,715,188 § (4,827,938) 8§ 894721 3 781,970
2013 § 3,188,328 § (4698277) $ 18318605 3 321,656

The major 2014 City projects were Pleasant {é«”\“}w neighborhood park access and
improvements, a water main extension on Weq%:"@t jartin’s Road, a show plow and a police
dispaich center. A R
éﬁﬁ @Qﬁ o ﬁé:‘j%
The maior 2013 City projects were an “’a’mbm?ém sg:z’:ow plow, street improvements and the
76" Street sewer & water mains front Fa,;ﬁ'w t@?’u@iz Debt repaymenis in 2013 resulted in a
significant decrease in capital ;elat%% Qf%i)t i
*{}x @Z}

infrastructure by developers aaé%ﬁheﬁé’s eoniributed to the capitalized infrastructure of the
governmental activities of appréé@maieﬁgié‘zszl 994 in 2014 and §122,295 in 2013,

Capital assets contributed to the business-iype activities by the municipality were $317,738 in
2013 and $1,197,101 in 2013.

An additional portion of the Cily's nel position {(3.8% and 4.1% in 2014 and 2013,
respectively) represent resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be
used. There were $8,142 010 and 38,666,344 respectively in those net positions that were
restricted to specific purposes.

The 2014 decrease of $524,334 in restricted net position reported is due to transfers to the
Enterprise funds from the Development fund.

The 2013 increase of $425.132 in restricted net position reported is due principally to
development aclivilies.

The remaining balance in unrestricted net position of $12,864,280 and $7,807,546, in 2014
and 2013, respeciively may be used to mesl the Cily's ongoing obligations fo citizens and
credifors. At the end of the current and prior fiscal years the City reporied positive balances in
the unrestricted net position for both the governmental and for its business-type activiiies.
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The 2014 $4,956,744 increase i Unrestricted net position was the resuit of retirement of

non-capitai debt.

There was a 2013 increase of $3,950,784 in unrestricted net position repoded in connection

with government-wide activities. The major component was the increase |

used for debt retivement purposes.

Government-wide activities
The detalls of changes in net position follow

Revenus
Program Tevenus’
Charges 01 services
Operating grants & condribuions
Capiai grants & contributions
General revenue:
Property taxas
Other taxes
infergovernmental
investment samings
Oither
Totat revenue

Fxpenses:
General goversmment
Public safety
Public works
Health & humnan services
Caffture & recreation
Conservation & development
interest on long-erm debt
Water
Sewsr

Tolat expenses

increase m net posilion
before transters

Trensfers

Change m net posiion

Nat position - beginning

Net posifion - ending

City of Franklin Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ending December 31, 2014 and 2013

n funds that were

Governmentsl Business-iype
Activifies Activities Total

2014 23143 Hid 2013 2014 2013
$ 4237867 $ 4241404 5 BSBRGI6 $ BBETIM § 12076483 § 12838135
1,001,262 1,833,050 - - 1,601,252 1,838,950
1,437,524 1,652.850 )_%s‘&s? - 1,676,081 1,659,858

«%f‘ o
24,200,834 24 067 81%;\@ éﬂ‘ - - 24,200,884 24,097,812
728,774 72, ﬁ?s {Ii"’ % - 726,774 723,985
1,510,848 o - 1,519,848 1,625,331
695,541 2{%8 f*\ ;’g‘?m 227 589 444 1,337,768 656,727
50,158 53\21@ . & 50,878 40,398 111,038 180 613
34,779 855;}“‘* .,gaﬁ'z?@?sé Qm 9.620.278 9,357,573 44 400,136 43,595 407
G
5.%’3:/

2,919@%‘%} 2@}‘5 267 - - 2,918,040 2,815,267
16,104 631 5434 847 - - 16,184,631 16,484,847
7231238 §,550,807 - - 7,231,238 8 550 807
673,332 593048 - - 873,332 698,083
1,865,832 1,838,700 - - 1,865,832 1,838,700
450,884 422095 - - 459 884 427 D85
582 711 802 552 - - 582 211 807 562
- - 5077744 5,051,835 5077,744 5051835
- - 4,180,946 4,133,632 4,180,946 4,133,632
20,027,068 25,712,360 4,258 690 9 185 467 38,185,758 58,857 833
4852790 4,625,468 361,588 72106 5214.378 4,607 574
{144 6613 {66,726} 144,601 §6, 728 - -
4,708,189 4558 742 506,189 138,832 5 714,378 4,697 574
118000800 113442058 92,360,256 92 751 424 216 391.056 205 663 482
$ 122708880 ¢ 118000600 § 02805445 § 02300356 § 215605434 § 210321056
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Governmental aclivities in 2014 increased the City’s net position by 34,708,188 or 80% of the
total growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are:

A $908,184 surplus in General Government activity

An increase from Debt Service of $2.438,390

Net increase from internal service aclivities of $333,710

Net decrease in development activities of $734,488

*

]

Governmental activities in 2013 increased the City’s net position by $4,558,742 or 87% of the
fotal growth in the net position. Elements of this increase are:

= A $1,407 150 surpius in General Government activity

= Increase due to the decrease in Long term Debt of $§1,649,959

=  Decrease in governmential aclivities capiial assets het of depreciation of $1,040,447

= Net increase in TiF District activities of $2,307,794

= Net increase from internal service activities of $77,500

= Net decrease from special assessment activities of $51,651

= Net increase from development activities of $437.437

s« Net increase from non major funds activities of 376,824

Y
o
Expenses by Functiop’, Gdsmmental Activiies
e
/'Q}
D7 s&
?‘{Q*“% ey
A
i
A
518,008,000 - 5
o
S16.800,000 |
$14 000,000 -
$52.000600 -
£30,000,600 -
$8,000,000 |
$6.000,000
$4.000,000
$2,600,000 |
> Gmeéﬁ H Heaﬁhwandhmnan Cullure and ¢ C{msewaboa and iﬁ[er;;;::;:;eﬂg
government Public safety . Publcworks services recreation ¢ dewelopment tern deht
! 83318940 | 16,194 831 7231238 673,432 1565832 | 455004 582,711
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Revenue by Source - Governmental Activities

Charges for services
12% .
Capitel granis &
X contributions
Operating grasis & A%
confritadions
8%
intergovernmenial
4%
Interest & Other
2%
Other Taxes
T Property Taxes
0%
.
N
Y
ot oo
. \Q\V {i{j
i e
PP R s
Business-type activities QY ¥ ®F

In 2014, business-type aclivities ;nczﬁase@?‘thﬁbéif\? net position by $506,189 or 10%. The

key elements of this increase Wer%wonéﬁﬁgﬁﬁnWEm deveiopers.
‘Q\‘} \Q

In 2013, business-type activilies Qg%edge@&e City's net position by $138,832 or 3 percent

from ihe prior year. The key &l iments Qiﬁhis increase foliow:

+« The increase from operating acﬂwtfes {the change in net posilion exciuding capital
contributions and its related depreciation expense) was $257,622. The goal of the
business activities is to provide these services at least a break even basis o minimize
the cost 1o the users. Both the water and sewer activities are currently meeting this goal.

« Depreciation expense reiated o contributed assets - $1,315,791
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The following graph compares the 2014 charges for services o the operating expenses for
water and sewer aclivities.

Operating Revenue and Expense - Business-type Activities

HLMEO i
008008

$4.000008

£3.0600.000

BLAL0H00 -

SLGadaed

Watar
rivgtuL

%“4 @“
Water and Sewer expenses can exceed §aa}’em‘§% c%gifé iirthe current policy of including only
depreciation from City spending on ca@“»él;g@s % m@?he rate formula. The large amount of
new infrastruciure that has been ms&g}iec}@w g@%&nmeam 15 the reason for this policy. When
mainienance and replacement ccgi}ﬁﬂ@z:ease @@l\p{}izcy may nesd fo be reevaluated.
. pue
As shown on the following charf %}%‘%q?; ess-type revenue includes capital grants and

contributions, investment ear@ﬁgs A ~miscellanecus income in addition to charges for
services {operating revenue).

Revenue by Scurce - Business-type Activities

; inferest & Other
C&_pata_l granis & 7%
Capital grants & conifbutions -Sewer
contiibutions Water 0%

Charges for services -
Water
50%

2%

Charges for sarvices -
Sewer
41%
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Cily's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendabie resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City's financing requiremenis. In parficular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government's net resources avaitable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $18,030,657, a decrease of $749,020 from the prior year. At year
end the unassigned fund balance was $3,952,388. Of this tolal $6,148,771 was for general
fund aclivities. This amount was offset by deficits in the Debl Service, TIF Disiricis and
Nonmajor Governmental Funds. The Debt Service fund has an interfund loan with favorable
financing and the deficit will diminish as revenue is received from future year property taxes
to repay the financing. The TIF Districts deficit also have interfund loans with favorable
financing and will diminish as revenue is received and ased to repay the financing.

The City has assigned fund balances for aclivilies Qj“{ize Capital Projects of $4,699,458. In
addition, $207,270 of Generai Fund Balance h@% ‘tg;f;ea assigned for encumbrances into 2015.

Ouiside party restrictions have resulied }&@*es@éﬁieﬁ%hﬁ%alances
1} to pay debt service - $546,238, < .
2} for utility improvements - %}’%@3 &1%‘-"”‘
3} for development purposes - $4, }i’i‘@ 339,
4) for TIF Districts of $347 978" ,;;;x \f’
5} for library services $595:27%and>
6} for donations, graﬁ%i’fﬁnds ff“t) fid waslte and recrestional activities — totaling

£560,306.

The City aiso has nonspendable fund balances o indicate that it is not avaiiable for new
spending because it has aiready been commitied for prepaid expenses and inventories
{$79,355) and for advances o other funds ($2,198,618). The advances are scheduied for
repayment in 2017.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. As of December 31, 2014, the total
fund baiance of the general fund was $8,633,112 of which $8,148,771 was unassigned. This
unassigned fund balance represenis approximately 25% of 2015 general fund budgeted
expenditures.

The total fund balance of the General Fund increased by $851,545 during fiscal year 2014.
Actual revenue was more than budget revenue by $73,279 or 0.3 percent. Changes in
employee benefits reduced Public Safety costs significantly. Employees are paying a larger
share of health benefit premiums and retirement costs. Also, an aciuarial assumption change
recuced the retiree heaith cost.

The Debt Service Fund has a iotal deficit fund balance of $424,721, $546,238 is restricted
for the payment of debt service and a deficit of $970 959 is related to advances made from

Page 21



the Internal Services fund. The fund balance increase of $1,068,0486 related to the repayment
of interfund advances.

The TIF Districts Fund has folal deficit fund bhalance of $865 804 and 2 restricied fung of
$347 978 and a deficii fund balance of $1,213,872 reiated to interfund advances .

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds have a folal fund batance of $10,688,160. The fund
baiance increase of $1,311,904 came principally from a new debt issue proceeds of
$1,590,000. The major fund balances relate to future development and planned replacement
equipment expendiiures.

The City's Proprietary Funds provide the same iype of information found in the government-
wide financial siatements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water Ulility at the end of the year amounied to $1,464,723,
an increase of $830.489 from the prior year. The increase was a result of an $873,727
transfer from the Development fund and debt issued.

Unrestricted net position of the Sanitary Sewer Fund at the end of the year amounied fo
$2,565C,807, an increase of $167,285 from the prior year. Tofal net position increased due to
operations. “g

The enterprise funds financial statements can ks fofg?‘;ff on Exhibits G, H and | of this report.
General Fund Budgetary Highlights <’£

Revenue exceeded the budget b@%?{%‘??% \?”estment earnings exceeded budget by
$151,632 on unrealized gains relatad 1@?&3{;& @a?ket rates on fixed income investments. An
insurance dividend caused Miscell %Gugg@e&%nae {o exceed budget by $68,314,
Gy wha

Actual expenditures were es%@fhan mgeted expendiiures by $1,870,998. The largest
favorable variances were in General Government and Public Safety. The City established a
$950,000 restricted contingency reserve {o preserve shared revenue from the Siate. That
contingancy was nol needed. Within Public Safety, a change in actuarial assumptions
reduced the retiree health cosis from what had been in the budgel. The combined impact
was a significant reduction in expenditures.

A $851,545 surplus compares favorably to the Originally budgeled $850,000 deficit. Reduced
expendiures are the driver behind these resuiis.

Capital assets
The City's investment in capital assets for ifs governmental and business type activities as of
December 31, 2014, amounis to $203,451,941 net of accumulated depreciation. This

investment in capital assets inciudes fand, buildings, improvemeants other than buildings and
machinery and equipment.
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City's Investment in Capital Assets

Governmental Business-iype
Activifles Activities Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 24840831 § 24858327 % 821225 % 521,225  § 25ATGS858 § 25479582
Buiidings and
improvemenis 24747845 24,225 482 3434442 3,438,827 28,152 257 27,664,418
Improvements
other than buiidings 83,860,788 92173188 110,447,888 108,764,750 204308778 201,937,832
Machinery and
and equisment 17,514,587 17 571,157 2 894 344 2,799,107 20,208,938 20,370,264
Consiruction
Y process 423313 152,823 351.610 57842 774,823 210,885
Total capital asseis 161,466,174 158,081,087 117,449,578 118,581,851 278,315,750 275,663,038
Less Accumulated
depretiation {48,581.49%) {44 611,575} {28.882319)  {27485787) {75,463 809) {72,098,348)
Capital assels net of ﬂ{i;t%
éegrecgazggn $ 114884884 $ 114468508 w%;‘ﬁsg@‘é’?jﬂ i BB0G5 184 § 205451941 § 203564542
PO
R AR R

The total decrease in the City's net iﬂ@&@@ %Wﬁ“fél assets net of depreciation for the

current fiscal year was $112,751 or 05%& . O
e Qg} ?Q\

= .%% £ ¥
For further details on capilal asset a@%%fﬁe@g to Note 1{D)5 and Note 4(D) of the Notes to
Financiat Statements and Schedugé% 12 @2.

&© o~
Long-term debt K <

State statutes Emit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up
to & percent of its total equalized valuation. At December 31, 2014, the City had general
obiigation note and bond issues cuistanding totaling $37,711.522 The current legal debt
limitation for the City is $141,773,183. The City's current outstanding general obligation debt
is 21% of the statutory debt limit. In the last 15 years the City has not exceeded 25% of the
statutory debt imit.

By City policy, outstanding general obligation debt is limited to 2% of total equalized valye or
$71,793,882. This represents 52% of the policy limit.

The City's present rating from Moody's for its general obligation debt is "Aa2".

in December 2014, a new $5,320,000 ten year debt issue was sold. TIF District #3 soid
$3,330,000 for infrastructure costs on the 27" Street project, while the City will use
$1.880,000 for Capital Improvement projects. The Frankiin Water Utiiity borrowed $1,290,000
on a 20 year bond to finance construction of the Water & Waste Water Building. The utility’s
pian is o make fulure infrastructure improvements including water main replacement and
new water service from current reserves and from City collected impact fees.
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In January, 2012, the Franklin Sewer Fund signed a Clean Water Fund Note with a notionai
amount of $27 562,754 fo fund the construction of a sewer interceptor in the City. The note
had a balance of $23,486,522 at December 31, 2014. The Notes have a 20 year repayment
scheduie to May, 2031, The City has an intergovernmental agreement with the Metropolitan
Mitlwaukee Sewer District to pay the City the required interest and principal with payments on
the Clean Water Fund loan beginning in 2015.

City of Franklin’s Outstanding Debi {All purposes)

Governmental Business-ype
Activities Activilies Total
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
GGeneral obligation
Bonds § 7H15000 § 8185000 § 24776522 § 24565423 § 32391522 § 32,75042¢
Notes 5,326,060 9,695,000 - - 5,320,000 3,895.00¢
Total $ 12935000 - $ 17880000 § 24776522 $ 24565423 § 37711522 § 42.44542:

Additional information of the City's jong-term debt can g% found in note 4(F), Schedule 5 and

Tabies 11 — 13 in the siatistical section of the f&@\oﬁ@\
gt ke

Gther Changes of Significance _ §w

Post Employment Health Care Beg@fit%ﬁl\ O

The City of Franklin provides retirg @ée@ﬁﬁ sare benefits to certain retiree groups from the

o

date of retirement until age 65 Prio¥t0.«2008 the City's portion of health care cost was
recognized as an expenditure i the peg@%f premiums were paid. Funding for those costs was
provided out of the current operating budget of the City. This was referred {0 as financing on
a pay as you go basis.

The Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement #45 effective for the
City of Franklin on January 1, 2008 that said that the expense of these benefits has to be
recognized over the working lives of the employees. The Common Council conciuded that
the City of Franklin should not only recognize the expense on its financial statements but
should fund those amounts out of its general revenue starting in 2008 with the establishment
of a section 115 trust. The actuarial computed annual required contribution under GASB #45
for 2014 was $551,716 and for 2013 was $523,342.

hore delailed information can be found in footnote 5C.
Economic Factors, Tax Rates and Next Year's Budgets

» The unemployment rale as of December 31, 2014 for the City was 4.2%, Milwaukee
County which inciudes the City, was 6.0%. This compares with an unemployment rate of
5.2% for the State of Wisconsin.

« The local tax rate decreased 0.2% for operations for the current and in the prior two years
changed {0.30)%, and (7.04)%, respectively.
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» The fax levy was un-changed the past two years and increased $42,000 two years ago.
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City's finances for those
with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to
the Director of Finance & Treasurer, City of Franklin 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wi
53132.

General information or more detailed financial and budget information relating to the City of
Franklin can be found at the City’s website, www frankiinwi.gov - Finance Depariment tab.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Exhibit A

Governmental Business-iype
Activities Activities Totat
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 20251812 § 4235805 3% 24 487 517
Receivables
Accounts receivabie 701,584 2,470 842 3,172,506
interest receivahle 58,267 - £B,267
Taxes receivable 24 872 828 300,182 24 973,010
Note receivable - - -
Special assessmeants receivable 1,382,528 - 1,382,528
internal balances {18,687} 18,687 -
Due from other governmenls 285002 4,108 258111
Prepeaid items 124,838 - 124,836
Inventories 11,818 - 11,818
Long term advences 2198 816 {2.188,648) -
Restricted cash and investmenis - 313,558 313,568
Due from other governments - long term - 26,055,831 28,055,631
Capital assets (net of accumuiated depreciation)
Land 24948831 ~ 521,225 25,470,858
Buildings and improvements 15,613,602 2.194.7380 17,308,282
Machinery and equipment §.878,27. 1,061,170 7 58T 443
improvements other than buildings BL2T1H85 84,438 472 151,710,337
Construction in progress GO fE31gy » 361610 774,923
Total assets oA 18EE23:068 (T 119,767,955 284,291,224
T ’ gﬁf;\ f:“'”“; Qic}
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESO&@ES@;@ w5 n’?
Unamottized refunding costs @K 5“5 m{?“ @@5?8 - 163 578
D P
LIABILITIES VT o
Accounts payable .{{’“%“ %ﬁw 1,140,160 1,650,808 2,790,768
Accrued liabilities A wr §73,938 237 344 1,211,282
Due o cther governmenis 115,088 - 115,088
Accrued interest 192,142 g7 824 186,068
Special deposils 141,751 100 141,851
Nencurrent iabiiities
Due within one year 1,308,881 1,245,008 2,553,877
Due in more than one year 132,781,806 23,640 538 37,422,144
Total Hablities 17 563,687 26,871.510 44 435 577
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Subsequent year property taxes 24414291 - 24,414 291
NET POSITION ‘
Net investment in capital assets 105,180,688 88,687 257 193,758,248
Restricted for
Debt service 580,805 - 580,608
Utility improvements 1,818,450 - 1,818 450
Development 4,170,338 - 4170,338
Library 588,752 - 598,752
Other 560,308 - 560,308
Sewer equipment replacement - 313,558 313,558
Unrestricted 2,689,548 40156306 13,705,178
Totatl net position $ 122708888 § D2806445 § 215805434

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
Page 20



FunctionsiPrograms

Goverrynicnial activilies
Seneral governmment
Pubfic safely
Public wnrks
Health and burman services
Culture and recreation
Consemvation and development
Interest on iong eom debt

Taotal governmental aclivlies

Business-iype achvilies:
Waler
Sewer
Totat business-type acihities
Totat pomary govemment

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Programn Hevenue

Exhibit 8

Net {Expense} Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Operaing Captiat
Charges for  Graptsand  Grants and Governmental Business-type
Fupenses Senvices  Gondribubions  Contritudions Activities Actaties Total
£ 2918348 $ 213328 % - - S {2,708812) & - (2,705,612}
16,184 631 2 78R 334 233474 34 064 {13658, 762 - {13,858,762)
7231238 1470 863G 1438024 1,307 834 {3,013,750) - {3,813,750;
§73332 115,650 11601 ﬁ@‘;szs {457 455) - {457 455}
1,865,832 115,008 297,166 s 7000 {1,523 658) - {1,523 658}
458 884 51,917 ! (407,067) - (407 957}
582 711 - 882 211} - (682 211}
28927 068 4,237 867 {72 350.415) - {22 350415}
5,677,744 5429 ,?’fiﬁh ’ 178,678 - 520 851 526,851
4 180,946 3266 80870 ot - £1.881 {852 164} {852 168}
9258690 BEBUSE O o - 238,557 - {331 817} {331,510
$ 39185758 § 12626983 $.1501262 $ 1.676.081 (22 350,415} {331 517} {22.68153%)
General revenue:
Property {axes levied for general purposes 20073958 - 20,073,858
Property faxes levied for debt service 1,600,006 - 1,660,000
Property taxes jevied for T Dislicts 2526925 - 2,526925
COther taxes T2B,774 - 726,774
infergovernmental revenue not restricted o spacific programs 1,518 848 - 1,519,848
investment earnings 695 541 642,777 1,337,768
bisceffaneous revenue 43,170 53,378 54,048
Gain on sale of capitat assets 15,688 - 15,988
Transfers {144 601 144 601 -
Total general revenue and transfers 27,058,604 §37.705 27 B8 310
Change In net posifion 4,708,188 506,189 5,214 378
Met position - beginning 118,000 802 82 380 768 210,391,056
Net position - ending $ 1227083988 § 02896445 2156805434

Bae accompanying notes o the inancial staiements.
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ABSETS
Cash and inwvesimenis
RHeceivables
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Taxes receivable
Special assessments regevable
De from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid items
inveniorias
Advances to other imds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
{IARILITIES
Accounts pavable
Acersed iabililies
Due o other funds
e to other governmends
Soocial deposiis
fdvance from other funds
Tota! ishilites

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Linearned & unavaiiable revenue

FURND BALANCES (DEFICIT}

Nonspendable:

Inventories and prepaid fems

Advances to other funds
Resiicted:

Debt service

Hility improvements

Diavelopmeant

TiF Districts

Donations

Health services

Library services

Solid wasie

Recreational sepvices
Assigned:

Purchases on Order

Capital projects
Unassigned {deficit}

Tolal fund balances {defivit)

TOTAL DIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS,
AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT;

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Baiance Sheet
Governunerndal Funds
December 31, 2014

Exhibit C

Nenmajor Total
Debt TiF Governmental Governmenteal
General Service Disfricts Funds Funds
$ 6924141 $ 578780 § 3778005 $ 7561442 § 18842658
581536 - - 108,378 800,867
58267 - - - 58,267
18,232 330 1672 040 2,600,657 4077 851 24 672,828
- 136,509 - 1,246,519 1382 528
11,552 - - - 11,552
65505 - 17556 171631 255,002
66,536 - - 500 £7.436
14,040 - - - 11,819
5 198 616 - - 3,305 000 5523 518
$ 76150404 5§ D3G6788 5 64ET308 § 18481173 & 51515673
$ 544815 § - §y TS5 S 843103 $ 1,267,283
455 408 P - 15,427 470,835
11,230 e i - 10008 30,239
112,703 o g - 2386 115,089
141751 W/&‘:& P RS - - 141 751
- b VROl o 4588000 - £ 663.000
1,265 702 M 0z8B00 ' 4662665 £84.925 7 698,167
T &
T k) zﬁf
160 588 Oy 1098 hos 2.6908% 5118088 25,795,810
e e
Q‘g} {}&d\%\{}w
'3 AN
AN b
T 7B amE . . 900 79,355
2108 518 - - - 2 158 816
- 545 238 - - 548,238
- - - 672,431 872,431
- . - 4170330 4170338
. . 347 478 - 347 578
- . - 122 550 122,550
- - - 175,220 175220
. . - 586,277 596,277
. . . 248,305 218,305
- - - 48,151 46,151
207 270 207270
- - - 4.699.459 4599 459
6,148,771 (970 ,859) 11213.872) {11,55%) 3.952,398
6,633,112 (424 721) (865 604} 10 668160 6,030 657
$ 26150404 $ 2306753 § 6487308 $ 16451173 5 51515673

See accompanying notes to the inancial statements.
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Exhibit C.4
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Fund balances - iofal governmental funds % 18,030,657

Amounts reporied for governmential actévities it the siatement
of net position are different because:

Capital asseis used in governmenial funds are not financial resources
and are therefore are not reporied in the funds 114,884 884

Some receivables that are not currently avaiiable are reported as
geferred inflows of resources in the fund financial siatemenis
but are recognized as revenues when gamed in the government-wide

statements
Special assessments 1 382528
Internal Service Fund net position @f@ 3,440,171

P
Long-term lighiliies applicable to the City's gove{gmegﬁgl activities are not
due and payable in the current period, and ﬁ@:{)r{‘mg ,m%{ei}ot reported

as fund fiabilities. Interest on long-term a;&b“{ L%“RO @g%%

governmental funds, but rather is recogmxzqe{»as ar exﬁ%nditu;‘e when due
General obiigation debt {}gﬁ“ e w,\:‘f«?} «&"’5 {13,187.273)
Compensated absences ‘ aﬁ@“ ;%3 Q:C“ (1,824,334)
Net pension obligation @ o oC (78.880)
Unamortized refunding costs {gv - ﬁej‘“ 163,578
Accrued Interest B {102,142)
Net change in nst position of governmental aclivities $ 122,708,988

See accompanying noles {o the financiel siatements.
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Exhibit D
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Revenlie, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmentai Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Nonmajor Total
Debt TiF Governmental Governmental
General Service Districts Funds Funds
REVENUE
Taxes $16828045 $ 1500000 $ 2544928 $ 3,856,687 § 24827868
intergovernmental revenue 2,536,187 - 432,128 438,780 3,408,078
Licenses and permits 808,302 - - - 208,302
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 421,978 - - - 421,978
Bublic charges for services 1,367,737 - - 1,284,074 2,631,811
Special assessments - 88,168 - 883,922 1,057,088
Intergovernmental charges for services 136,372 - - - 138,372
Investment sarnings 280,132 21,968 108,838 318,884 739,930
Miscellaneous revenue 143,014 - - 268,287 411,301
Total revenua 22,828,785 1,690,132 3,085,882 7,136,724 34,542.513
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 2,788,740 -y - - 2,786,740
Public safety 15,367,022 A5 Y - 23,417 15,380,139
Public works 3,580,384 w{%}“ *%{'3— - 1,680,268 5,140,650
Health and human services 633,864 _u{éfé} Qf’ﬁf T o - 32511 666,475
Gulture, recreation and sducation ?SS,G{}{)@}‘ & oo - 1,412,381 1,575,381
Conservation and development 385,345 N ﬁa{:?" 25 108,827 - 451,181
Capital outlay & ;@ﬁ* /_:\w} \Q{-“ 330,285 3,837,181 3,867 4465
Debt service I S ‘Qﬁwy &
Principai - P 5000 9,695,000 - 10,265,000
Interest & Y 345,644 385,644 . 731,288
Debt issuance costs ﬁQ} 5l WD - 457514 27,340 73,091
Total expenditures &32?,886,4@% 815,644 10,562,487 6,712,795 41,057 391
Excess {deficiency) of revenue
over expendifures {236,689 774488 (7 4756,555) 423928 {8,514 878)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Sale of capital assets - - - 39,884 38,854
Transfers in 1,112,244 226,811 - 7B5,952 2,125,007
Transfers out {24 009) - - {(1.827.870) {1.951,870)
_ General obligation debt ssued - - 3,330,000 1,880,000 5,320,000
: Premium {(discount) on debt issued - 66,747 166,030 - 232 827
Total other financing sources and uses 1,088 244 253 558 3,456,080 87,978 5,765,858
1 Net change in fund balances 851,545 1,068,046  {3,880.515) 1,311,304 {749,020)
Fund balances {deﬁc;{} - heginnfr}g 7;781 56? {% }492,?67} 3,1 14,621 9,3?6,25‘8 18,7?9,6??
Fund balances (deficit} - ending $ 8833112 § (424721} § (885894) § 10688160 $ 18030657

See accompanyng noles 1o the financial statements.
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CiTY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenus

Exhibit E

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmentat funds

Amounts reported for governmental aclivities in the staternent
of activiies are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However in the siatement of activities, the cost of these assels
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reporied
as deprecialion expense or losses when disposed ¢f.

Capitat outlays
Depreciation
Net book value of assels disposed

Capial assels coninbuted from governmental activifies to
the water and sewer utility.

Cordributed capital assels are reported as revenues in %he{:‘}@
statement of aclivities. o P

The issuance of long-term debt { e.g. notes, 3&;}3%}%5;{5?0 i
financial resources o governmental fﬁﬂdmgw‘?rﬁg%
the principal on long-term debt ccnsum@é CL 13 %ﬁa c;“al
resources of govemnment funds. N%\%ﬁer tcé?%sag gwmfever has
any effect on net position. o

Principal paid on § "i‘@“”‘% §' w

Proceads from ;o@—ter%defﬁ net of premiumidiscount

S é‘%rrent
%‘sem of

(Government funds report the eﬁ‘ecis of pre{%l&ms
discounts and refunding losses when the debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of the differences in the
treatment of these ilems.

Some expenses reported in the statemeni of activities do not
require the use of current financial resources and therefore, are
not reperted as expenditures in the government funds

Compensated absences
Net pension obligation
Accrued interest payable

Revenue in the governmental funds that provides current
financial rescurces but has been previously reported as
revenue in the statement of activities

Net special assessments
Accrued inlerest receivables

internal service fund change in net position

Net change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes fo the Bnancial stalements.
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$  (749,020)

2,530,449
{3,068,623)
(22,908}

{317,738)

284,954

10,265,000
(5,320,600

{276,169}

(50,638}
8,000
144,586

(20,248}
{40,268}

333,770
$ 4708189



CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

Ceneral Fund

Exhibit &

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Baiances -
Budget and Actual {on a Budgetary Basis)

Yaar Ended December 31, 214

Variance with

final budget -
Budgetetf Amotunt Favorable
Criginal Final Actual {Unfavarable)
REVENUE
Taxes & 17,000,800 § 17890900 § 17,872,808 § {17,991}
intergovernmental revenue 2,549,550 2,548,550 2,536,187 {13,383}
Licenses and permils 864 300 884,300 808,302 (55,8908}
Fines, forleitures and penalties 444 000 444 000 421,876 {22,024}
Public charges for services 1,416,400 1,416 400 1,387,737 {48,663}
intergovernmental charges for services 125,000 125,000 138,372 11,372
Investment earmings {loss) 138,500 138,500 280,132 161,632
Misceilmneous revenus 74760 74,700 143,014 858,314
Total revenue 23,603,350 23,803,350 23,576,628 73,278
EXPENDITURES
Cumrent
General government ,ﬁ\%&; sy 3,395,566 2,958,472 443 094
Public safety ‘" H13 6,188,422 15,365,096 23328
Pubilic works 23,5 g%% 1&»; W 679,218 3,585,021 94,197
Health and human services oW Q‘é%? 04,5 664,004 633,954 36,940
Culture and recreation &, A 1 i 82;;\” 181,082 188,345 2,737
Conservation and development PRECAp: 71758 471,758 355,354 116,404
Total expenditures 7 5 "2*‘91 59‘3’350 24,594 950 23,084,252 1,510,688
"”;@ . ::;:“ "‘suf
. S o
Excess {deficiency) of revenue & o iji:“ﬁ
over (under} expenditures <~ @@ {980,060} {951,600} 582,377 1,583,977
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES {USES}
Transfers in 400,000 400,000 £5,380 {334 820}
Transfers out (400,000} {400,000) - 400,000
Net change in fund balance -
budgetary basis {990,000} {951,600} 657 757 1,648,357
Adjustments to generally accepted
accounting principies basis
2014 encumbrances - 207,270 207,278 -
2013 encumbrancss - {13.482) {13 482} -
Net chainge in fund balance - generally
accepied accounting principies basis {990,000} {797.812) 851,545 1,648,357
Fund Balances - beginning 7.78%,567 7,781,587 7,781,567 -
Fund Balances - ending $ 5791567 $ BH,983755 $ 8633112 & 1,848 357

See accompanying notes to the fmancial statements.
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ASBETS
Carrent assets
Cash and nvesiments
Recewables
Acrounts weooivable
Taxes recewvabie
Ore fromm olher lunds
Oee from oiher govermnments
Prepaid expenses
Advance to other funds
Jotal current asscls

Moncurrent assets
Resiricled cash and mvestmentis
Bue from other govemments
Capttal assets
Land
Bulldings and inprovements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equdpment
Construction in progiess
Less accumuiated depreciation
Total captal assets {net of
accumlated depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total asseis

CITY OF FRARKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Fands
December 31, 2614
{with comparative information for December 31, 2613)

Exhibd G

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental

Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -

Uity Utiliy Sewer Sewer Year internal
Current Year Pricr Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
$ 2403806 % 54122 $ 1832400 $ 1696168 $ 4235905 & 1,408,954
1,761,230 4,506,706, sﬁﬁé&ﬁz 885,673 2470947 11,667
188 877 14,305 133,253 308,182 -
20919 73532 54698 54 451 -
- A5 109 - 4,108 -
- ~ - - - 57,500
P CE - - - 2,338,000
3895531 .48 FEIGIRS 4N 3709758 2772793 7,185,560 3£18,151
o 3 :“(6'"
\ {:{{ <

LT ;;y - 343,558 277,230 313558 -
R e - 26 (55934 25,451 385 26,055 931 -
162,885 162 885 358,340 358,348 521,225 -
1,812,879 1,833.594 1621433 1,605,333 3,434 412 -
58,332,711 55,799,708 54415277 53,865 042 110,447 08B -
1,623,630 2,018,893 770,711 780,214 2.G654,341 -
183,552 30,742 168,058 27,260 351,810 -
{15 338 874} {14.562.515) {13 643 445} {12,924 2627 {28882 318 -
45 676 883 45,283,307 43,480,374 43811877 88,567 257 —
45 676,883 45 283 3067 85 859 B3 65 540 487 114 836,746 -
48 672 714 44 902 590 73,689 821 72314 285 122042 335 3815151
Continued
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LIABILITIES
Current fabilites
Accounis payable
Accrued lisbiliies
Accrued interest payabie
Oue o ofher funds
Special deposis
Cerrent partion of long-tenm chligations
Total current liabilities

Noncurent lisbilites
General obligation notes payable
Accraed compensaled absences
Total noncument Eabilities

Longterm advances
Tudat linhilities

NET POSITION
Net lvestment in capitaf assels
Restricled for
Sewer equipment replacement
Urrastricted

Total net position

See accompanying noles o the financial statements.

Exdhibt G

{concluded)
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Staternent of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Dacember 31, 2014
{with comparative information for December 31, 2013}
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Water Water Sonitary Sanitary Carrent Rotivifies -
atility Uity Sewer Sewer Year Internat
Current Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
3 310926 % 735,848 $/\~:§ 829879 $ 583618 § 1650603 % 5480
215,271 £88 (’“}\\ Co22073 18,064 237,344 376,500
1,451 T 96,373 00,687 97,824 -
65554 R \@E,éﬁ& & s 10,210 10,971 75,764 -
100 BN 2500l - - 100 -
gad24 OV R U LmeaTe 1,130,218 1.245 096 -
1,178.728: 7 2128 007 1,843,558 3,306,738 375980
o7
g 22,357 276 23 484 351 23 57310 -
208 - 32,883 28 581 £1768 -
1549379 o DR 5B1 22.388,158 23482932 23,640,538 -
- - 2198616 505040 2,198,518 -
2431108 985 059 26714782 25 841 560 29,145 890 375980
45 076,883 45203 307 43490374 43,811,877 B8,567.257 -
- - 313,558 ZFT 230 313558 -
1,464,723 634 224 2.550,907 2,383 618 4015 830 3,440,171
§ 48541608 $§ 45917531 $ 468354838 § 46472725 § 972805445 % 3,440,171
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CITY OF FRANKLUIN, WISCONSIN

Siatermemt of Revenue, Expenses and Changes it Fund Net Posifion

OPERATING REVENUE
Metered sajes
Residential
comynetcial
ingustiial
Pubic guthority
Yolal metered sales
Croep health & dental eharges
Unmeterad sales
Public fire protection sasvice
Peivaia fire protecton service
Forfeited discounts, penaliies and other
Fotal operating ravents

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of sales and sarvices
Depreciztion
Adminisiration

TFotal perating expenses

Opzrating income {ipss)

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
nvesiment eRmings {ogs)
Sundry
interest expense
Tolal nron-oparating revenue (espensas)
woome {oss) before cupital contnbutions
and transfers

Capital conirbubions
Transiers in
Transiers ot

Changs in net posifion
Net posiion - beginning
Net pasition - ending

See accompenying noles fo the Tnencial siatements.

Proprietary Funds
Yesar Ended Dacomber 31, 214

{with comparative information for Becember 31, 2613}

Business-type Activities - Berprige Funds

Exhimbit H

Waier Water Sanitary Sanitary Current Activities -
Uihay iy Sewey Sewer Year Internat
Custerd Year Prier Yesr Current Year Prier Year Totals Setvice Funds

3 2872235 & 2736880 3 1848364 § 1824307 5 4524308 § -
1386804 1334347 #36.37¢8 225,555 2223 171 -
289,456 342385 368,238 380,382 785 654 -
2B3.623 326,648 152,953 178,840 438,678 -
4,732,075 4,740,888 3,234,825 3,200,183 7,966,800 -
- - \”:"s - - - 3,264 801
8,557 BEID Y - - 8,557 -
511,413 492853 - - 511,413 -
118,154 L HiEoas” - - 118,154 -
51530 _  AVERAN o a0 34,554 83582 -
2421713 - FDOHG6.897 3243737 £.688 618 3.264 B4
3524 2,730,849 2 683248 4,252,183 3,047,634
1407 57 .z 551745 850,060 1.758.316 -
437 . 281,262 217,343 £28222 -
58050387 3,553,795 3,550,443 £ 549 73 3.047 834

i {TEB o 4';2‘*

65 TRENLS 357,298 (328,805 {308.708) 33885 216,967
{4,504} {5,249y 846731 574,733 542,227 199,852
482632 AT 48 1,615 2,400 50878 -

{21,808} {5.131) {587, 158) {583,188 1808 G5u} -

22 955 27578 51,168 15,0563 B4 148 146,403

368,734 384858 {262,703 {312,761 12343 333,770
406,060 487927 150,235 708,174 556,295 -

873,727 - - - 473727 -

{1.044 448} €1 127801} (2. 418) {2.574) {1,044 864} -
244075 {255 D06} {117 8863 393,833 506,189 333,770

455947 531 46,372 537 46472 725 46,0078 8EY $2,380.256 3,108 401

$ A5541608 £ 46017531 § 48354839 § 46472725 5 B2BOA44S § 3 44D 171
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CITY OF FRAMELUN, WISCONSIN
Sigtement of Cash Flows
Propristary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2614

{with comparative infonmation for the year ended Decetnber 31, 20131

CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipls from customers and users
Receipis for inferfund senvites provided
Paymenls o suppiiers
Fayments 1o emplovess
Payments for mterfiund services used
et cash fiows provided by fused in}
opesating activiies

LASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPTTAL
FINANCHIG ACTIVITIES

Transler put - paid for tax equivalent

LASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RE{LATED FINANCING ACTANTIES
Proceeds from capiial debt
Transiers fom other Gmds
Adgvances From other funds
Payvments on capital debt
Adwances {0 ofner govemmenss
interest on capital deht
Acqlisiion of capial assets

Net cash provided {used) by capitst
and relaled Shancing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIATIES
Fayents eosived on advances fo ofer unds
Advances to other funds
Iresiment eamings

Ne{ cash provided (used) by Invesiing activilies

Net increase {Qacrease) i cash
and cash equiyalonis

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginsing
L ash and cash equivatents - Ending

Cash and Invesiments - Unresticied
Lash and Investnients - Restricted

See accompanying notes 1o the financtel statemernis.

Expbitd
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Businesstype Activities - Epterpiise Funds Governmersal
Water Water Sanitary Sanitaty farrent Activities -
Uity itity Scwey Sewer Year intemat
Carkrent Yeos Prior Year Correnl Year Prior Year Totale Eervice Funds
k3 5224511 § 5103328 § 28621421 § 32808047 F B215832 § 3,356,165
268324 257 487 - - 268,324 -
£3.154. 243} 3A486.071; 23704504 {3,867.158) {5.322.457) {3,157 B13}
(487,161} {475,268} {431,683} 1482,8603 {91B.854) -
{95,460} 185,558} (G5 408} {56 800) {190.800) -
1,758 281 1,252 644 283 564 {34777 2053 445 188,382
c o
e Nt
£ .
{1044 448) @\%’2}‘,‘“@‘1 1 {24183 (2 574y {1.656.864) -
IS T
A \'fz\ o o
SR A
d ’ 23.2%1 2505500 1,288,705 -
- - 873,727 -
1693575 505,040 1,653,576 -
£ {1,162,112) - 11,102 442 -
¥ {604 Bdfy (1451437 (604, 545) -
e \{“20=3§§3\f" K?/‘ {5121 {53 464} {568,286} {611,822 -
<5 (480 511}(_\‘ {156,066} {184 083} {21 3003 {675.054% -
1830380 (16t 187} {765 918} 404 526 873434 -
- - - - - V23,000
- N - - - {1.160,600)
4,504} (5,288 £46.731 574,733 542 327 116,863
14.504) & Hal £46.73% 574733 6542 227 {58,167}
2,349,583 {1,443} 172,258 289,554 2521342 140,185
54122 55,565 1.973 385 1683815 2027.52% 1,268 769
i 2403865 3 54,422 5 2145868 § 1873380 § 4540463 F 1.408 054
g ZAILEQE § 54,422 § 1832100 § 4686958 F 4235805 § 1,406,854
- - 313 558 37723 312558 -
3 2403 B35 5 54132 5§ 2145508 § 1673380 § 4540463 § 1,468 854
Continusd



Fxhibk |

{eonciuded}
CITY CF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended Becember 31, 2014
{with comparative information for the year ended December 31, 2013}
Business-lype Activities - Entarprise Funds Sovernmental
Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Currant Activifies -
Eitility Utiligy Sewer Sever Year internai
Cuarrent Year Prior Year Current Year Prior Year Totals Service Funds
Reconciliation of operating income {loss] to net
cash provided by operating activities
Crperating income fioss) § 385784 § 35?,289\ $  {32689%) & {36706 % 38885 § 216967
Adjustments fo reconcile operating income {foss} o net . _{(CE
cash fiows provided by operating activities o5 4 E
Depreciation 1,097 571 \{\\ (}%?“ 315 651,745 650,060 1758316 -
Depreciation allocaied o other funds 5,424, \\k § ,‘8 >\ {5,424} {5,528} - -
Nonoperating revenues 4G 26\%; . 'ﬁ{ 1.815 2,400 503,878
{Increase} decrease in assets
Avcounts recenable & ,4 75}»\ @{}55) {3006 £33} 24 385 (274,563} 81,354
Taxes receivable (}V{B M\B},x MKJ{} 5E5) 22 948 {1,585} 14,900 -
Prepaid expense 35 A o H02) - - 502 -
Oue from other funds {\\55}2?5‘5 e {76,124) {18,834} {23 588} 36,371 -
Due from olher governments o \“ - {4,109 - (4,109} -
Increase {decrease) in liabilities K4 8
Accounts payable ?3?28(} 11,587 256,061 {1534 108} 331,341 {101,379}
Accrued habilifies 214,582 {2382} 3497% 1676 218,561 {8,600}
Tue to olher governmments - 86,654 - - - -
Tie ko olher funds {122 848) {142 932y {761) 16,971 {123,701} -
Customer deposits {2,460) 260 - - {2,400} -
Compensated absences 3582 4 852 3,582 4 952 7164 -
Tolal adjustments 1353487 935 554 820 763 {870,465} 2014 260 {18 585}
Net cash #ows provided by {used in)
oparating asctivities $ 1750281 § 1202843 $ 283884 $ {T177171 & 2053145 § 18937382
Neoncash Capital Activities
Cost of Utility plant installed andfor financed
by external parties o1 the Cily 5 406060 $ 487427 § 150235 $ 08174 3 556095 % -

See accompanying neles 1o the Inancial sialements.
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Exhibit J
CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
December 31, 2014

City of Frankiin
Agency Post Employment

Funds Benefiis Trust
ASSETS _
Cash $ 53136084 % 18,518
Investments:
Fixed income Securities - Corporate Bonds - 1,015,757
Domestic Eguilies - 3,065 498
International Equities - 456 888
Total Cash & Investmenis 53,136,094 4 558 701
Accounis receivable 5,820 2,305
Taxes recejvable 16,394,592 -
Due from Municipality o - 288
Total assets s %@33 69,536,506 $ 4,559,294
5 o
LIABILITIES & FF S
Accounts payable N oV L8 08 208292 § -
R PSS R

Accrued liabilities . @w _ qf:f @Z} - 57,482
Due 1o other governmenis @«@’ \.”;C""”‘ {;3} Q‘?}\J 89 318 207 -
Due to municipality a:y ! :}\%3, o - 83,573
Special deposits ke e ng@ 11,007 -
Total liabilities Q@% wkg}w $ 69,538,506 141 055

Total net position held in trust
for post employment benefits $ 4,418,239

accompanying noies {o the fnancial statements.
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Exhibit K
CiTY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
Statement of Changes in Fiduclary Net Posltion
Fiduclary Funds
Yezar Ended December 31, 2014

City of Frankiin
Post Employment
Benefi{s Trust

ADDITIONS
Contribuiions
City of Frankiin 3 551,716
Relirees 84 452
Nei investment eamings 312,888
Total additions 8949 086
DEDUCTIONS
Incurred claims 264,279
Prescription drug claims . 77 466
Claims fees » f:\,?;;:’% 13,896
Stop loss premiums less claims received (2&% (;;w} (18,600}
Total deductions %@/@%@@% 5 337,041
L3 S F
Change in net position %f‘{ {;\Q o @@Q} 612,055
NET POSITION HELD IN ?Rusr’\é‘ca& Q"i‘ Q%
POST EMPLOYMENT BE&EFI’&;S&* ‘é;\i;}\“g
Beginning of year 4 ::}‘;1 mf\ $g; 3,806,184
End of year ) $ 4.418,239

accompanying noles o the financial stalements.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying summary of the City of Frankiin's more significant accounting policies is
presenied to assist the reader in interpreling the financial statements and other data in this
report, These policies, as presenied, should be reviewed as an integral part of the
accompanying financial statements. The accounting policies of the City conform io accounting
principles generally accepled in the Unied Stales of America as applicable to governmenial
unils. A summary of the significant accounting policies follows:

A. REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all of the funds of the City of Frankiin. The reporting entify for the City
consists of (a} the primary government, {b) organizations for which the primary government is
financially accountable, and {¢) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting
entity's financial statemenis to be misleading or incomplete. A legally separate organization
should be reported as a component unit if the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accountable o the organization. The primary government is financially accountable if
it appoints a voling majority of the organization’s governingipody and (1) it is able fo impose is
will on that organization or {2) there is a ;}eterfggé} iég}}he organization to provide specific
financial benefits to or burdens on the primary. govemiment. The primary government may be
financially accountable if an organization is gﬁmt@i‘é[egéné%m on the primary government A
legaily separate, tax exempt organization st @ﬁ%‘;@b‘@ﬁas a component unit of a reporting
entity if all of the following criteria are mst (Mheﬁ&h@é?n%c resources received or held by the
separaie organization are entirely gg;%lgﬁg%ﬂ “é‘%ﬂ’g%ﬁ? for the direct benefit of the primary
govermnment, its component units, or'its cansiifaents;{2) the primary government is entitied to, or
has the abilily to otherwise access, a@é@}fy@%ﬁ%"e economic resources received or held by the
separate organization, {3) the ﬁ@dﬂo“ﬁ%%’&scurces received or heid by an individual
R . N AN o P . . .
organization that the specific prirdary go ment, or iis component unils, is entitied 1o, or has
ihe ability to otherwise access, are significant {o that primary government. Biended component
units, aithough legally separate entiies, are, in substance, part of the government's operations
and are reported with simiar funds of the primary government. Discretely presented component
anits would be reporied in a separate column in the government-wide financial statemenis fo
emphasize that it is legally separate from the City. This report does not contain any discretely
presented component units.

Blended Component Unit

The Community Development Authority {Authority) was created by the City in 1892 to serve as
a financing vehicle for certain Tax Incremental Districts (TID) development within the City. The
Authority is governed by a seven member board appointed by the Mayor and confirmed by the
Common Council. Although # is legally separate from the Ciy, the Authorily is reporied as if &
were part of the primary govermnment because #s sole purpose is to finance and manage certain
TiD deveiopment projecis for the benefit of the City. The Authority's operations are included in
the governmental activities of the government-wide financial statements and in a TID capital
projects fund. The Authority follows accounting policies of the City.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SURBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {con%énﬁed}
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Government-Wide Financial Stafemenis

The statement of net posifion (Exhibit A} and sistement of activities (Exhibit B} display
information about the reporting govermnment as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting
entily except for fiduciary funds, The slalements distinguish between govemmental and
business-type acliviies. Governmental activities generally are financed through texes,
infergovernmental revenue and other non-exchange revenue. Business-fype activities are
financed in whole or in part by fees charged o exiernal pariies for goods and services provided.

The statement of activities demonsirales the degree that direct expenses of a given segment or
function are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those thal are clearly identifiable
with a specific function or segment. The Cily does not allocate all indirect expanses fo functions
it the statement of activities.

Program revenue includes 1) charges to customers or E%%ams who purchase, use or directly
benefit from goods, services or privileges prowde@ by-a given function or segment, and 2}
grants and contribulions that are restricted o megﬁ%ing%ﬁe operational or capital requirements of
a particular function or segment Taxes aﬂdé{%ﬁe{%m “holinciuded among program revenue
are reporied as general revenue. Interm @%ﬁlgﬁ;&%ésoumes are reporied as generai
revenue rather than as program revenﬁ% e O

Fund Financiai Statemenis@\ wf;“ . Q‘? <

W@

Financial statements of the repori enﬁ%r @@ organized into funds with a fund considered to
be a separale accounting eniity. Faich fu s accounted for by providing a separate sef of self-
balancing accounts that constitute its assets, deferred ouiflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, nat

position/fund equily, revenue and expenditures/expenses.

Separate financial statemenis are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds with the latter being excluded from government-wide financial statemenis. Major
individual government funds and maijor individual enlerprise funds are reporied as separate
cotumns in the fund financial statements.

Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and enterprise

fund statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and enterprise
categories.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continused)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
Fund Financial Statements {condinued}

A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following
criteria;

a. Total assets and deferred outflows, labiiities and deferred inflows, revenue, or
expenditures/expenses of that individual governmenial or enterprise fund are at least 10
percent of the corresponding iotal for all funds of that category of type.

b. The same element of the individual governmeniai fund or enterprise fund that met the 10
percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresponding folal for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

¢. in addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes is important
to financial slatement users may be reporfed as a n\}a;sf fund.

1 Sy
Major Governmentai Funds S Q@
8 g;v’
*wzi‘
General Fund - accounts for the City's priri %@%% ivities. It is used fo account for ali
ccm ited for in another fund.

financial resources except thoss req\gr
N x"o“vf
Debt Service Fund — accounts for r@cu&e @ﬁanﬁﬁ%&iion from taxes, special assessments and
other revenue along with payme%sﬁmaﬁé f@;‘}”pmc;pai and interest on long-term debt gther
than enterprise fund debt. o “”@
% Mz;?
TID Fund — accounts for resource accumzs tation from tax incremenis and other revenue of the
TID along with paymenis made for capitat cutlay, other expenditures, principal and inferest
on long-term debi obligations of the TiDs. Each TID is a sub fund of the TID Fund.

Maior Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used to account for operations {a&) that are financed and operated in 2
manner similar to private business - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs
{expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services o the general public on &
confinuing basis be financed or recovered primanily through user charges, or {b) where the
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenue earned, expenses incurred,
andfor net income is appropriaie for capital maintenance, public policy, management controf,
accountability or other purposes.

Water Utility Fund — accounts for operations of providing water services fo Cify residents and
bilis for those services.

Sanitary Sewer Fund — accounts for the operations of providing sanitary sewer services for City
residents and bills for those services.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
in addition the Cily reports:
NonMajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds — account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
major capital proiects) thai ave legally or policy restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes. The funds include Library Operating, Library Auxiliary, Solid Waste Collection, St
Martin's Fair, Donstion, Civic Celebrations and Grant.

Capital Projects Funds — account for resources accumulated to be used for the purchase of
equipment, sireet replacement, acquisiion of land and the construction of capilal
improvement projects. The funds include Capital Cutlay, Equipment Replacement, Capital
Improvement, Street Improvement, Utility improvement and Developiment.

Other Fund Types , A
s 2

internal Service funds — account for the paymagi gg?he City for active employees of group
health and dental charges for services a-nﬁ“ st@a la&%‘ 3@@;{&:}0& charges and the billing of
deparimenis or agencies of the Cli}*‘g 8 egébursement hasis for the services
received. o

%x fz&{:} "\.@ \fé\

Fiduciary funds — sccount for asse@he&ff b:,pj%he %’:&@ in a trusiee capacity or as an ageni for
individusgls, private orgamzaiion?ﬁda’of“@o% fmental units. The fiduciary funds indlude a
properiy tax fund, an other a cy duthat records the agency aclivity for emergency
government, monitoring and € ng & es funded by others, an escrow fund and a post
empioyment benefits trust fund for reiiree group health costs.

C. MEASUREMENT FOoCcUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded
when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenue, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred inflows, iiabilities and deferred ouifiows resuiting from exchange and exchange-iike
transactions are recoghized when the exchange fakes place. Properiy taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year that they are levied for.

Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows. Granis
and similar #ems are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider are mel. Special assessments are recorded as revenue when eamed. Receivables
are recorded as revenue when services are performed.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION
{continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements (continued)

As = general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions {o this general rule are charges between the City's Water Utility
and Saniary Sewer fund and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these
charges would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions
concernad.

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial stalements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the medified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when if
is both measurable and availabie. Aveilable means colleciible within the curent period or scon
enough thereafter to be used to pay fiabiiities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers grant revenue 10 be available if they arq@o@é@fed within 130 days of the end of the
current fiscal period and all other revenue to be&&e&*%ihigi@?e if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expendityfes @% re;?{gj;éﬁ when the related fund liability is

v

incurred, except for unmatured interest Q}ﬁ&%}o@ﬁg@g\ 9\3@‘ claims, judgmenis, compensated
absences and pension expenditures w%gh Q&{g@?&é}fﬁigg}%s a fund Hability when expected to be
paid with expendable available ﬁﬂan%@% eg@?g@é?@@@
N e R
R . ‘
Properly taxes are recorded the S ‘%@Jkd«@%s receivabie and deferred inflow and are
recognized as revenue the next y{gg:; whewzgﬁces financed by the levy are provided.
< A

intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenue in the period the City is entitfed to
the rescurces and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City are recorded as
receivables. Amounts not available or received prior to the entitlement period are recorded as

deferred inflow.

Special assessmentis levied for benefits ic property owners for installation of sanitary sewers,
water mains, roads, and other improvements are recorded as revenue when they hecome
measurable and available. Annual instaliments due in future vears are recorded as receivables
and deferred inflows.

Reveanue susceptible to accrual includes properly taxes, room faxes, public charges for services
and interest. Other general revenue such as permits, fines and forfeitures, licenses and
miscellanecus revenue are recognized when received or when measurable and available under
the criteria mentioned above.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continuad}

€. MEASUREMENT Focus, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATICN
{continued)

Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements {continued)
Fund Financial Statements {continued)

Deferred inflows are reported on the governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred infliows arise
from faxes levied in the current year that are for subsequeni year's operations. For
governmertal fund financial stalements uneamed revenues anse where polential revenue does
not meet both the "measurable” and “available” criteria for recognition in the curent pericd.
Uneamed revenue arises when resocwrces are received before the City has a legal claim to
them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In
subsequent petiods, when both revenue recegnition criteria are met or when the Cify has a legal
claim io the resources, the lability is removed from the balance sheet and revenue is
recognized, )
Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statemenis {G&he%aﬁ agency funds) are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus ang{\ﬁle @tcrual basis of accounting. Agency fund
financial statements are reported using 2?16@’%3{ ha%zs/%}f accounting and do not have a
measurement focus, ‘Q >

; (’*\z\
Proprietary funds disiinguish o;;eraggr% Eé%;feg‘&e {ggﬁd expenses from nonoperating items.
Cperating revenue and expenses géﬁeraé? r@%ﬂt‘%&m providing services and delivering goods
in connection with the proprietary fur% ps'ggé?p&%&tipera‘ﬁcns The principal operating revenue of
the Water and Sanitary Sewer funég re éh ;‘g s fo customers for sales and services provided.
The rates billed in the Waler Uts y are oved by the Public Service Commission. Sanitary
sewer charges are billed at rates esiabl:shed by City policy based on the charges received from
the Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage Dislrict and iocal operation and maintenance expenses.
The principal cperating revenue of the infernal service fund is charges to other funds for group
heaith coverage.

Operating expenses for proprictary funds include the cost of sales and services, adminisiration
and depreciation on capital assels. Revenue and expenses not meetling this definition are
reporfed as nonoperating revenue and expenses,

All Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management ¢ make estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amount of assels and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assefs and Habilities at the date of the financial stalements and reporied amounts of revenue
and expendifures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual resufis could vary from those
estimates.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. AsseTs, LIABLITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY

1.

Cash and investmenis

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the CHy considers all highly liquid invesiments with
an initiai maturity of three months or iess 1o be cash equivalents.

The City of Franklin maintains two invesiment policies. The first covers all funds except fiduciary
funds for retiree health purpcses. The objective of this policy is {o generate current income,
consistent with safety and reasonable risk as defined under prudent person rules. As operating
reserves, the quality, liquidity and maturity structure of the portfolio are most important. The
mvesiment policy:

a.

b.

d.

e.

f.

Requires a minimum rating at time of purchase of Aa3 by either Moody's or Standard &
Poor's.
Limits an issuer fo 10% or less and assel classes to 35% or iess of the fair vaiue of the
portfolic with the exceplion of U.8. Government Masury angd Agency securities that
have the full faith guarantee of the U.S. Gavgmmeﬂ\
Specifies a minimum amount of cash eg,m‘eal;@ffs be maintained, an average life of the
portfolic not exceeding € years and mﬁhdﬂe’ﬁéa@ﬁ%ﬁe with a maiurily exceeding seven
years at the date of purchase to fsn;@%t f rete i
Limits investments highly sensitive ot ?Xﬁri@?} changes through #s duration and
diversification poiicies to limit @%’e al ems \
Prohibits the investment info s@:‘u rilies,
Limiis derivative invesiments gaf*ﬁm@f‘ Wi"ﬁi’} a final maturity of seven years cr less.

‘é S

in addition the City's investment ;ﬁt@?cy reaﬁ%&ts allowabie investmenis to investments that follow
state statuies, section 66.0803, that imits investments fo:

a.
b

.
d.

Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, frust company or loan association
authorized io {ransact business in the state and maturing in three years or less.

The Local Government investiment Pool (LGIF)L.

Bonds or securilies issued or guaranteed by the federal government.

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village,
town or school district of the State of Wisconsin. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition
district, a local professional baseball park district, a local professional foothall stadium
district, a cultural arts district, or by the Universily of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics
Authority and the Wisconsin Asrospace Authority,

Any secutity maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category assigned of a nalionally recognized rafing agency.

Securities of an open-ended management investment company of investment trust
subject to varicus conditions and investment options.

Repurchase agreements with public depasitories, with certain conditions.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)}
D. AssETs, LIABRUTIES AND NET POSITION OR EQuiTy {continued)
4. €Cash and Investments {continued)
The second investment policy is for its fiduciary fund for retiree health purposes. The policy:

a. Requires the investment to be in a section 115 trust for retiree health purposes.

b. Requires compliance with the “prudent person” standard.

c. Requires asset allocalion policy thal considers the lability stream of benefils, the

relationship to current and projected assets, the historical performance of capital

markets and the perceplion of future economic conditions.

Primary invesiment obieclives are safety, diversification and returm.

e. - Allows investment in varicus assel classes.

f. Limits investment in egquities after 2015 1o 75% of total assels fo be invested. Prior o
January 1, 2016 equity invesiments may be up to 100% of the assets.

o,

The City manages the various risks in #ts cash and znvestmafﬁts as follows:

a. Custodial creditrisk — investments are {}@td %ja frustee or third parly cusiedian.
- deposits in e&g%ss(é?”i:i@fe insurance fimits are maintained
in the Stgfg ggsec&;{éd bank balances in
amoums of gt ledst 7%5?@ of the year end cash balances.
b. Credit risk — securities purchg% zzee\é {";é”za%@?aﬂ AA or beiter investment rafing.
¢. Concentration of credit risk {SSM%E@? aé%et class not to exceed 10% of the market
value of the porifolic with the ?ée& rs 0{‘ 8. issued securilies.
d. inlerest rate risk — manag@ by g ihe iength of maturily of newly purchased
invesimenis and fimils the{everagaigfé of the porifoiic to control risk.

Invesiments are slated al fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current fransaction between willing parties. Fair vaiues are based on guocted
market prices. No invesimenis are reporied at amorttized cost.

Adiustments necessary o record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating
statement as increases or decreases in investment income. investment income on commingled
investments of varicus City Funds is allocated based on average investiment balances.

The Wisconsin Local Government Invesiment Pool (LGIP) is part of the Siate Investment Fund
{5iF), and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the siatutory authority of
Wisconsin Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying asseis annually.
Participants In the LGIP have the right to withdraw funds in total on one day's notice. At
December 31, 2014, the fair value of the City's share of LGIP assets was substantially equal to
the amount reporied in these statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)

2. Rsceivables
Property iaxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In
addition 1o properly taxes for the municipality, taxes are collected for and remitted 1o the stafe
government, county government, three local school districts, technical college district and
metropoiitan sewerage district. Taxes for all other governmental units bilied in the current year
far the succeeding vear are reflected as receivables and due fo other taxing unils on the

accompanying fiduciary funds statement of fiduciary net position.

Broperty tax calendar — 2014 tax roll:

Lien date and levy date December 2014
Tax bills mailed December 2014
Paymentin iull, or January 31, 2015
First instaliment due \"‘*?&Janaary 31, 2015
Second instailment due & O March 31, 2015
Third instaliment dus PR @‘f‘} May 31, 2015

oS [
S DT B ﬁganuary% 2015

2

Personal property taxes in full

%
xa’?‘*

Final {ax setilement with County PN Q\EE" _ ‘,{?;;‘” K Aagus‘i 20, 2015

Tax deed by County — 2014 - & ) Q@‘

Delinquent real estate taxes @ﬁ% gfw, WQ@;% Qj_:g\ October 2017
(;\:}M k \:<m-

ot

Accounts receivable have been shoWh n%ﬁcﬁaﬂ allowance for uncoflectible accounts. No
provision for uncollectible accouratm{ ceivabig*has been made for enterprise funds because of
their right by law 10 place delinquen ?bilis a\m%he tax roll

During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounis owed between funds. Short-tern interfund loans are reporied as “due o and from
cther funds”. Long term interfund loans are reported as “advances from and fc other funds”.

Interfund receivables and payabies bebween funds within governmental aclivities are eliminated
in the statement of net position. Any residual balaneces oufstanding between the governmental
activiies and the business-type aclivities are reporied in the government-wide financial
s{atements as “internal balances”.

[n the general fund financial statements, advances {o other funds are offset equally by
nonspendable fund balance which indicales that they do not constitute expendablie available
financial resources and, therefore, are not available for approprigtion. Advances in all other
governmental funds are classified in fund balance based on the availability of repaymenis for
use.
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NOTE 1 - SUMNARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {conlinued)
. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQUITY (continued)
3. Inveniories and Prepaid ifems

Governmental fund inventory items, except fuel inventory, are charged to expenditures when
purchased. The fuel inveniory is recorded at cost on a firskin first-cul basis using the
consumption method of accounting. The cost of such invenlories s recorded as
expenditures/expenses when censumed rather than when purchased. Year end inveniory was
not significant.

Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction and for coperation and
maintenance work. They are not for saie. Malerial and supplies on hand at vear end are
considered immaterial.

Ceriain paymenis io vendors reflect cosis applicabie to future accounting pericds and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of
prepaid ifems is recorded as ex;aendi%uresfexpei}ses g\%&en consumed rather than when

purchased. S
& &«Qy
4. Restricted Assets »:.;;3?‘ ,{Q@J&@g} e

| _ RN -
Mandatory segregation of assels are presgn ed. 85 Jestricted assets. Such segregation is
required by agreemenis with extema_k;ﬁéﬁ‘g .ﬁ&?re;@iéat}iﬁties payable from resiricted asseis

are so classified. The excess of résini &1 I;ﬁet%ver current iabilities wilf be used first for
equipment replacement. The femain%é%jfgg@ﬂ&z%?ed from earmnings, is shown as restricted net
position. e 7 QQ

5. Capital Assels
Government-Wide Statements

Capilal assets, which include properly, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assetls are defined by fhe government as asseis with an initial
cost of more than $1,000 for general capital assels and $10,000 for infrastructure assels with
estimated useful lives of two years or more. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated hislorical cost if actual amounis are not available. Donated capital assels are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation. Additions fo and replacements of capital
assels of business-type acliviies are recorded at original cost, which includes material, labor,
overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction when significant.

For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest capifalized ecuals the interest expense incurred
during consfruction netted against any inferest from temporary investment of borrowed fund
proceeds. No net interest was capitalized during the current vear. The cost of renewals and
beftermenis relating {o relirement units is added {o plant accounis. The cost of properiy
repiaced, retired or otherwise disposed of, is deducied from plant accounis and, generaily,
together with removal cosis less saivage, is charged o the applicable function.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

D. Assets, LIaBRITIES AND NET PosiTION ok EquiTy (continued)

5. Capital Assels (continued)

Government-Wide Statements (continued)

Depreciation of all exhaustible capitai assets is recorded as an aliocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position.

Depreciation Is provided over the assels’ estimated useful lives using the siraight-fine method of
depreciation. The range of useful lives by asset type follows:

Buildings and improvements 10-50 Years
Machinery and Equipment Z-30 Years
Water and sewer systems 20-100 Years
infrastructurs 30-80 Years
Fund Financial Siatemenis \\glx
O

in the fund financial siatements, capital asset@%s%f in govemnmental fund coperations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures @ﬁﬁ'ﬁe g%’ve{é‘amsg‘;ta[ fund upon acquisition. Capital
assets used in proprietary fund epe?ationsﬂ&r«e @@:c:u;ﬁéd {&' the same in the government-wide

statements. R Mfﬁi’“
'\.

s o
6. Deferred Inflows/Cutflows @%&%U}ﬁés
LY
*:’/" K
Gains or losses on prior refundings é‘e é%ﬂoﬂ%_ed over the remaining life of the ¢ld debt, or the
life of the new debt, whichever fsis%oner T& batance gt year end for gains/iosses is shown as
an increase or decrease in the deferred outflow of resources section of the statement of net

position.

in governmentat funds, property {axes receivable, special assessmentis and interest revenue not
yet due are not recognized as revenue in the cumrent period. For the governmentwide and
proprietary fund type financial statements, special assessments and inlerest revenue are
recognized as revenue in the current period. This leaves properiy iax receivable as a deferred
inflow of resources in the statement of net position.

7. Compensaled Absences

Under terms of employment, emplovees may earn compensatory time and are granted sick
leave, severance pay and vacations in varying amounts, Only benefits considered o be vested
are disclosed i these statements. All vested compensatory fime, severance pay and vacation
pay are accrued when incurred in the government-wide, proprelary and fiduciary fund financial
statements. A liability for these amounds is reporied in governmental funds only if they have
matured, For example a liabilily, as a resull of employee resignations or retirements are payable
with expendable available resources.

Page 50




CiTY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}
D. AsseTs, LIABHITIES ARD NET POSITION OR EQuiTy {continued}
7. Compensated Absences {continued)

Payments for vesied compensatory fime, severance pay and vacstion pay will be made at rates
int effect when the benefits are used. Accumulated vested compensatory fime, severance pay
and vacatlion pay liabililies are delermined on the basis of curent salary rales and include
salary related payments. Vacation and compensatory fime are used on a firsi-in, first-out basis.
Accordingly all accrued amounts are considered o be due within one vear. Severance due
within one yesr is estimated based on employee age and expecied retirement.

8. Long-term Obligations/Conduit Debt

All long-ierm obligations o be repaid from governmental ang business-type resources are
reporied &s labiiities in the governmeni-wide statements. The iong-term obligations consist of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.

{ ong-ferm cbligations for governmental funds are (g;’ai re@arted as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debt {plus any ;}{f\mmmﬁ is reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and interest arey pc@eé iﬁ @gpend;tures The proprietary fund
accounting is the same as dis in the gove@ﬁe@xévsq\@gtg@%ents

The City has approved issuance of | gé&a}% W&sog}@éni revenue bonds (IDRE) for the benefit
of private business enterprises. IDRE's are %ucu by mortgages or revenue agreements on
associated projects of the business & érp\t}fs\esf The IDRB’s do not constitute indebiedness of
the City. Accordingly, the bonds ar@@%‘c ré’f;q@éﬁ as fiabilities in the financial statements.

&

9. Claims and Judgmenis

Claims and judgmenis are recorded as lHabiliies If all the condiffions of Governmeniat
Accounting Standards Board pronouncemenis are mel. Claims and judgments that would
normally be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are recorded during the
year as expendifures in the government funds. If they are not to be kquidated with expendable
available financial resources, no liability is recognized in governmentsl fund financial
statements. The related expendiitre is recognized when the liability is lquidated. Claims and
judgments are recorded in the government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses
when the related labilities are incurred. There were no significant claims or iudgments af year
end.
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KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS
December 31, 2014

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES {continued)
D. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQuUiTY (continued)
18, Equity Classifications
Government-Wide Statements
Equily is classified as net position and displayed in three componenis:

a. Net Invesiment in capiial assels — Consists of capital asseis, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, morigages, notes, or other
borrowings that are atiribulable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
asseis. Deferred ouiflows of resources and deferred inflows of rescurces that are
atiributable o the acauisition, construction, or improvement of those asseis or related
debt are also included in this component of net position. Unspent related debt proceeds
are excluded from the calculation of net investimend in capital assets.

b. Restricted net position — Consisis of restricted a35 %%and deferred outfiows of resources
reduced by liabilittes and deferred mfio&gs of«/resources related to those assels.
Generally, a Hability relates fo restricted. @Sefg}‘f? the asset resuifs from a resource flow
that also resulis in the recognifion of aa‘fﬁab@{y &g?af igb iability will be liquidated with the
resiricted assets reporied. @a@‘ «::e

‘52 ggi}

¢.  Unrestrieted net position — Thaﬁet a;?fo wo &&a\e assets, deferred outfiows of resources,
fiabilities, and deferred inflows eﬁ;rfsoa%fﬂces?tnat are not included in the determination of
net investrment in capital asse@‘ér tigﬁ i‘egg clted components of nel position.

When both restricted and unrestt’e’;%ed reﬁ.m;rces are available for use, it is the Cily's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources, as they are needed.

Fund Statements

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various calegories based on the nature of
any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The government itself can
establish limitation on the use of resources through either a commiiment {restricted fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest decision-making
authority. The goveming council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the
gevernment that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, committed
fund balance. Once adopied, the mitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a
similar action is {aken ({the adoption of ancther ordinance) to remove or revise the imitation.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES {conlinued)
. AsseTs, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION OR EQuiTy {continued)
10. Equity Classifications (continued)

Fund Statements {continued)

Armounts in the assigned fund baiance classification are intended 10 be used by the government
for specific purposes buf do not meet the criteria to be classified as commiited. The goveming
council (Common Councii} has by resolution authorized the Director of Finance & Treasurer o
assign fund balance (Resolution 2014-7025). The Commeon Council may also assign fund
balance as it does when appropriating fund balance o cover a gap between estimated revenue
and approprigtions in the subsequent years appropriated budget Unlike commitments,
assignmenis generally only exist lemporarily. In other words, as additional action does not
normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above,
an additionat action is essential (o either remove of revise g commitiment.

11. Comparative Data | @%

The basic financial statements include compgg@txyg data for the prior vear for individual
enierprise funds in the fund financial siatem@*z%s&&er@%r ;@ provide an undersianding of the
changes in financial position and Gperatfo%sﬁf -sg’ﬁand@ his comparative data is nct at the
level of detail required for a gresentatim %Fx céb?orm?@ with general acecepted accounting
principies. Accordingly, such mfonnét@ §i§§>uld*~ sad in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements for the year ended De 3,%‘; 72643 from which the data was derived. Also,
certain amounis presented in the prt%ﬁi‘eaf’ﬁét&@ave been reclassified in order to be consistent
with the current year's gresentaﬂo&a & %‘:\,
@b

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the
same basis of accounting for each fund as described in Note 1 C with the excepfion of
encumbrances, transfers from the General Fund to Special Revenue Funds and fax equivalent
from the Water Utility. Actual (budgetary basis} expenditures presented reflect actual (GAAP)
expenditures adjusted for expenditures liguidated under the prior period budget and
encumbrances expecied fo be liquidated under the current period budgel Aciual (budgetary
basis) revenue present the tax equivalent from the Water Utilily as tax revenue while GAAP
basis statements present this item as a fransfer.

A budget has been adopted for the General, Debt Service, Library, Solid Waste, Capital Oulay,

Equipment Replacement, Capital improvement, Street improvement, Development, Sanitary
Sewer and Water Ulility funds. Budgetis have not been formally adopted for other funds.
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Becember 31, 2014

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY {continued)
A, BUDGETARY INFORMATION {continled)

The budget amounis presented include any amendments made during the vear. The City may
authorize fransfers of budget amounis within departments. Transfers between departments and
changes o the overall budget must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the Common Councll,
Supplemenial appropriations during the year were not significani. Appropriations lapse at the
end of the vear unless specifically camied over. Carrvovers o the following vear were not
material. Budgels are adopied for personnel and non-personnel expendiiures af the funciion
level.

B. LIMITATIONS CN THE CITY'S TAX LEVY

As part of Wisconsin's Act 40 {2011), legisiation was passed that iimited the City's future tax
tevies. Generally, the Cily is limifed o its prior tax levy doliar amount {excluding TIF districis),
increased by the greater of the percentage change in the City's equalized value due fo new
construction, or 0%. Limited amounts of unused tax levy may be carried forward into the
foliowing year. Changes in debt service from one year fo é?i?:mext are generally exempt from this

Hmit. @?’@ .
LB
C. EXCESS EXPENDITURES OVERAPPROPRi&% §$ ;3 el
»"{:J m\‘:‘}' ,_f;«,-N £

I
The Cily confrois expenditures at the m;}%tt ie@::\ {e‘;ﬁ public safefy). For the vear ended
December 31, 2014 the General FL};}&%}M{: dXcesd budged expenditures, except for sirget

ighting. ¥ @;3 ff‘”w
“‘f? 5 o
Py .
NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON AL{;{.F& NDE” {;:?"f

A. TasSH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is ulilized by all funds. tach fund's portion
of this podl is displayed on the siatement of net position and balance sheet as cash and
invesiments of the Cily. In addition, investments are separately held by several of the funds.

Deposils in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for
time and savings deposits and $250,000 for demand deposits.

The City's bank accounts are also insured by the State of Wisconsin Beposit Guarantee Fund in
the amount of $400,000 per financial institution. However, although the fund had reserves
available at December 31, 2014, the future availability of resources to cover the losses cannot
be proiected because provisions of the 1985 Wisconsin Act 35 provided that the amount in the
fund will be used to repay public depositors for losses until the appropriation is exhausted af
which time the fund is abolished.
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December 31, 2014

NOTE 3 - DETALED NOTES ON ALL FuNps {continued)
A. CAsH AND INVESTMENTS {continuad)

The City mainiains a coliateral arrangement with ifs main bank {o provide collateralization in
excess of deposils maintained at the bank. The coliateral is maintained in the form of a letier of
credit from the Federal Home Loan Benk of Cincinnati in the amount of 342 000 000, Cash and
investimenis as shown on the Dacember 31, 2014 Cily of Franklin Statement of Netl position are
subject to the following risks:

Camrving Bank & Investment

Vaiye Balances Risks
Local Government invesiment Pool  § 382,137 & 382,137 Credit and interest rate
fMoney market funds 71,358 71,3568 Credit and interest rale
Cerdificates of deposit 1,470,600 1,470.000 Custodial
U.S. treasuries 1,483,552 1,483,552 Interestrate
.5, agencies 7,306,760 7,308,760 Credit, interest rate
wd and concentration of credit
Corporate notes 5556886 . 05556838 Credit interest rate
a‘*‘c o and concentration of credit
Total fixed income investments 16.270.761 g:? 16,270,701
Equity funds 35229870 & 3 3522387 Custodial
Fixed income funds 19715, {91 ,:\\ a;;} 1,015,797 Custodial and credit
Cash and demand deposits &1 684%985:"”’3 @ 54,470,737 Custodial
Total 4%“8&4‘%3;&513 75,273,622

\‘f;j \"\!3\’ %f’

Feconciliation to the financial sta’{eg@ents is &!’ﬁfm below:

b
Per Statement of Net Position h
Primary Government:
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 24487 517
Restricted cash and invesiments 213,558
Per Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Agency Funds 53,138,084
- Post Empiloyment Benefits Trust 4,556,701

$ 82493870

Custodial Credif Risk For deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
financial insttution failure, the Cily's deposits may not be returned o the Cily. As of Dacember
31, 2014, none of the Ciy's fofal bank balances of 354,470,737 were uninsured and
uncollateralized and therefore exposed to custodial credit risk. For investments — Custodial
credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able
to recover the value of ils invesimenis or collateral securities in the possession of an cutside
party. All of the City's investments except the Local Government investment Pool have a tri-
party relationship with the investmenis held by a party independent of the party managing the
invesiment,
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BDecember 31, 2014

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)
A, CASH AND INVESTMENTS {continued)

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty wili not fulfill its obligation.
The City's policy requires a minimum credit rafing of Aa3 at time of purchase. The City's fixed
income invesiments subject to credit risk include agencies securities, corporate asset backed
securities, corporate bonds, government repurchase agreements and money market funds and
were rated by Moody's Investor Service.

As of December 31, 2014, 93.5% of the fixed income investments were in rated fixed income
invesiments and subiect to credit risk. The ratings as a percentage of the fotal investment
portfolio were as follows: Aaa at 45.5%, Aat at 5.2%, Aaz2 at 13.2%, Aad at 5.2%.and A1 at
5.2%. The portiolio makeup of fixed income investments was corporate securities at 28.7%,
treasury and agency securities at 45.5%, and money market funds at 04%. The Local
Government Investment Pool was 2.0% of the investments and is not rated but is subject to
credit risk. Equities and fixed income mutual funds hield in trust at 23.5% make up the remainder
of the invesimenis and are nof rated.
;\"“«

Concentration of Credit Risk Concentration of cr@ﬁ;t 16k is the risk of loss atiributed to a large
investment position in a single issuer. As of thag@eg@%ber 31, 2014 no issue cther than U.S.
Treasury and Agency securities that have ?h%f{fﬁ %ﬁﬁhg:gdar@niee of the U.8. government and
the Local Government investiment Pool 4 %@ﬁ{{@» oﬁﬁ;ong&f greater than ten percent of the
portfolio. o

o }
L0
é;\ e {’“i %\”g ?“\;t'?\

interest Rate Risk interest rate rzs@zsé&é rf%sk tﬁé‘? rising interest rates will have an adverse
impact on the fair value of the inv grﬁfg m{ﬁie portfalio. The longer the maturities in the
portfolio the greater the risk of Iossgs in pe%tfgﬂﬁ vaiie.

The portfolic policy limits this risk by lm;tmg the length of permitted investments and limits the
purchase of invesiments highly sensiiive {oc market changes.

As of December 31, 2014 the Cily's investments exposed {o interest rate risk were as follows:

Fair investment Maturity in years
Investment fype { in thousands) Value Less than 1 1-5 5-7

Money market funds % 71356 % 71,356 & - 5 -
Certificates of Deposit 1,470,000 380,080 430,000 -
U.S. treasuries and agencies 8,780,312 1,483,552 2388777 4 917 G683
Corporate notes 5,556 898 1,013,739 4,543 157 -
Local government investment pool 382 137 382,137 - -

Total $ 16270701 3 3930784 §7421834 54817983
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NOTE 3 - DETaED NOTES OR ALL FUNDS (continued)
B. RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of accounts, laxes, noles and special assessmenis from cifizens and
others. Receivabies are reporied net of uncollectible amounts. The reserve for bad debis,
principally for personal property laxes and ambulance revenue, was $48,328 at December 31,
2814, Cther than the note receivable and special assessment receivables, all other recetvables
are expecied o be collected within one year.

The City in 2011 entered intc an intergovernmental cooperation agreement with another
government where the ofher government will reimburse the Cily for substantially all of the debt
service cosis resulting from the Cily taking on a State Clean Water Fund Loan. Those
reimbursements will start in 2015 and will continue over the iife of the loan, ending in 2031.

€. RESTRICTED ASSETS

in accordance with the City's ordinance enacting a sewer user charge system and regulations of
the Department of Nalural Resources, the Sanifary Sévwver Fund — an Enterprise Fund,
incorporated an equipment replacement charge as 4 @corﬁéoaeni of the rate structure tc be used
for significant mechanical equipment repiaceme;gt%’a&%qu;red by the Wisconsin Depariment of
Natura! Resources. Revenue gensrated f@ﬁ‘l ﬂ’é?s @arg‘@ is accumulated and used for
replacement of certain equipment. The %a; Qﬂs& ;a\?»‘iﬁz&aaccogn% at December 31, 2014 is
$313,558. @ o

f“\f
R
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FURDS (coniinued)

D. CAPITAL AgseETSs

Ceapital asset activity for the year endsd December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Capital assels not depreciated:
Land $ 24858327 3 14,210 % 22806 § 24848831
Construction in progress 152,923 720,608 450,218 423,313
Total capital assets not depreciated 25,111.250 734 818 473122 25372944
Capital assels depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 24 225 497 492,353 - 24,717 845
Machinery & eguipment 17,571,157 1,042,152 1,088,712 17,514,557
Infrastructure 92,173,188 1,687,600 - 83,860,788
Total capital assets depreciated 133,869,837 3,222,105 1098712 136,083,230
- S5
Less: Accumulated depreciation for: 5 o
Buildings & improvements 8,5?9,4;@ o 524,758 - 8,104,243
Machinery & equipment ﬁ,{lag;%ﬁ _@Q} & 982,534 1,088,712 10,888,324
Infrastructure 25 887 5 O 1,881,331 - 28,583,923
IS
Total accumulated depreciation o 44 B ,5}{;@ ;";?5“ 3,068,823 1,088,712 48 531,480
{3’ /’“} ’ &:\W {Qfé\
. , D S
Net capital asseis depreciated . ;’“‘Wé_g %,%’S,% 153,482 - 89,511,740
. O Q‘:’;\“}g Z.Q\@
Governmental activities cepital asseisi ' {’%f
net of accumulated depreciation & $ %@469,688 3 888,208 $ 4731422 % 114884684
Depreciation expense was charged o functions as follows:
Governmental Activities
General government $ 127,803
Public safely 715,831
Public works 1,823,694
Hesgith & human services 14,310
Culture & recreation 289,125
Conservation & development 1,880
Total governmental activities depreciation expense § 3068623
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

D. CaPITAL ASSETS (continued)

Balance Additions Dispositions Balance
Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not depreciated:
tand $ 521,225 % - 3 - 3 521,225
Construction in progress 57,042 555,003 261,335 351,610
Total capital assets not depreciated 578,167 555,003 281,335 872,835
Capital assets depreciated:
Buildings & improvements 3438927 16,089 20,614 3434412
Machinery & eguipment 2,789,107 48,290 153,056 2,694 341
Infrastructure 108,764 750 869,830 186,582 110,447 288
Total capital assets depreciated 118,002,784 934,219 360,262 116,576,741
Less: Accumulated depraciation for:
Buildings & improvements 1,151,324 ‘% 108,922 20,814 1,239,632
Machinery & eguipment 1,622,312 Q}\ 183,815 153,056 1,633,171
infrasiructure 24 ?1;2? 33;9 1,486,479 150,004 28,008,518
**\ & @
Tolal accumulated depreciation é&%\i??\ i ::?@% 758,316 383,764 28,882,319
: . @z;\f 5
Net capiial assets depreciated G BB E1S ﬂ%\’é {825,007} {3,502} 87,604 422

@v T
SV P
Business-type Aclivities Capital Assefg:e \’{5-
Net of Accumuligied Depreczateog; b ? &@995,‘?84 $ {276084) $§ 257833 $ BB5R87.257
%5‘*‘

Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows.
Business-Type Aclivities:

Water $ 1097571
Sewer 661,745
§_1.759.316
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NOTE 3 - DETaiLED NoTES ON ALL Funps (continued)

E. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS
Inferfund balances result from the #me lag bebween the dates that {1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expendifures occur, {2) transactions are recordsd in the
accolunting system and (3} payments between funds are mads. In all cases amounts are repaid

within one vear.

For the statement of net position, interfund balances owed within the governmental activities or
business — lype aclivilies are netted and eliminated.

The interfund receivables and payables at December 31, 2014 are as foilows:

Receivable Fund
Water Sanitary
Payabhie Fund {zeneral Uity Sewsr Total
«23,
General $ 3 ¢ 2&23\ 7878 §  11.230
Non-Major 41, 552 »{5’” @"dé? - 19,060
Water Utility - @ -{:; & 65554 85,554
Sanitary Sewer o {»w\? 2T - 10,210
‘%{3 g
Totals : ,@%5@ & @@13 $ 73532 § 106003
"Q‘% Q}“
Sy

The City of Franklin provides short ‘éﬁdﬁ@"tg@em advances to #ts TIF Districts. The amounis
advanced are either from procesds of a Srrowing or from fund reserves. They are used o
enabie the TIF Districts fo carry out approved project plans and may be replaced in the future by
direct borrowing. The TIF Districts interest rate is based upon the interest rate incurred by the
Debt Service Fund on its borrowings or the reinvesiment rate available to other funds. The
advances will be repaid as the proporticnate principal amounts in the Debt Service Fund are
due or when TIF District resources are avaiiable.

Receivable Fund

Self Capital Projects Due within
Payable Fund General insurance Development Total one year
TIF Disticts § - $ 2338000 F 2250000 $ 4588000 % 2883002
Debt Service - - 1,075,000 1,075,000 1,075,000
Sanitary Sewer 2,198,616 - - 2,198,616 . -

$ 2198516 $ 2338000 § 3325000 3 7861618 $ 30653000

Generally, transfers are used to {1} move revenue from the funds that collect them to the fund
that the budget requires io expend them, {2} move receipis restricted fo dabt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the Debt Service Fund and (3) use unrestricted revenue
cotlected in the General Fund 1o finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.
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NOTE 3 - DETAiLED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS {continued)

Transfers as presenied on the fund financial siefements during the year ended December 31,
2014 were as foliows:

Transfers Ouf

Nonmajor
General Governmental Enfsrprise Fund
Fund Funds Funds Tolals
Transfars in

Generaf Fund 3 - $ 65380 § 1.046.554 $ 1,112,244
Bebt Service Fund - 226811 - 226,811
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 24,000 761,852 - 785,462
Enterprise Funds - 873,747 - 873,727
Total & 24000 3 1827870 § ig4eoed 3 2008734

A reconciiiation of fund statement transfers to government wide Gansfers for the year ended
December 31, 2014 is as follows:

Gevemmerﬁ% Funds  Enterprise Funds

Transfers In per fund statements "@ gz; ~ 2128007 873727
Transfers Out per fund statements | é%*:«““ ;,_émci,‘;“’ %ﬁ 861,870 {1.046,864)
Net transfers per fund statements }?ﬁ‘ v \;\ @}” 173,137 {173,137}
Capital Contributions from b "‘g\ & w;:\

governmental funds fo emerpﬁseﬁhésgf f P "?é}\ {317.738) § 317,738
Government Wide Transfers Aw %“:v" S {144 601 & 144,601

,,,f’ kN
&5 "’%&

F. DEFERRED INFLOWS AND DEFERREWQTFLOW&

Governmental funds report deferred infiows in conneciion with receivables for revenues that are
not considered to be avallable to liguidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds
alse report deferred inflows in connection with resources that have been received, buf not yet
earned. Property taxes receivable for the subsequent year are not earned and can not be used
to liquidate Habilities of the current period. At the end of the current fiscal vear, the various
components of deferred inflows reporied in the financial statements were as follows:

Unavailable Uneamed Total
Governmental funds:
Property taxes receivable $ - $ 24414281 $ 24414291
Special assessments net yet due 1,382,628 - 1,382,528
Total deferred inflows
for governmental funds $ 1382528 § 24414281 § 257963816
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NOTE 3 - DevaiLeD NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
G. LoNG TERM OBLIGATIONS
Generai Obligation Debt
L ong-term lisbilities for the year ended December 31, 2014 were as follows:

Amounts
Balance Balance due within
12131013 Agddiions Deletions 123114 one year

Governmental Activities

General obligation debt $ 17,880,000 $ 5320000 $ 10265000 § 12935000 § 615000
Net pension obligation 84,880 - 6,000 78,880 -
Dremium 21,387 232 827 1,041 252 273 : -
Sub-total 17,686,267 5562827 _ 16,272,341 13,266,153 615,000
Compensaled absences ,;\"‘“g
Accrued vacation pay 435872 96%37? 952,054 427,655 427,655
Accrued severance pay 1,188,035 u;?éﬁ &%} 54 332 1,188,583 58,130
Accrued compensatory time 175783 % 2&8}%695‘% "ﬁ%éé 862 208,098 208.096
Total compensated absences 1773696 4072008 »07 1202288 1824334 £93 881
Governmenital activities {g" fﬁ‘i&@ ;g-@ MQQ\W
{ ong-term liabfiities $ 19,759 35\8“ K:%‘WE P25753 5114956229 § 15090487 § 1308884
3 @I\.« »«.

Al general obligation notes and i}%nds pa‘y%fbie are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
The notes and bonds will be relired by future property tax levies, special assessment collections
and designated landfilf revenue.

The governmental aclivities compensated absences primarily accrue fo and are paid from the
City's General Fund.

Amounts
Balance Balance due within
12131113 Additions Deletions 12131114 one year
Business-iype Aclivifies
General obligation debt $ 24585423 § 1313241 § 1102112 $ 24776522 31,184,248
Discount - {13,507} - {13,507} -
Subtotal 24565423 1,289,704 1,102 112 24783015  1,184.246
Compensated absences
Accrued vacation pay 45,780 39,3089 43,930 44 159 44 159
Accrued severance pay 57,161 4 608 - 61,769 -
Accrued compensatory time 12.513 §.668 4450 15,691 16,681
Business-type aclivities
Long-term ligbilities $ 24680877 § 1352289 § 1147532 § 24885634 $1245096
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NOTE 3 - Deranen Notes o ALL FunDps {continued)
G. LoNG TerM OsLIGATIONS {continued)

Details of general obligation notes and bonds payabile are as follows:

Tvpe issue Rale Payable Payable Amount 12131

General obligation promissory notes
12118114 2025 3/1/15-24 3/1& 91 $ 5320000 $ 5320000 °

Generat obligation refunding bonds

1/3/07 3.80 3/ 1/08-21 371 & 91 9,925,000 7,615,000
Total Governmental Activities Debt % ?23935 o606
Business-type Aclivity Debd

General cbiigation Clean Water Fund Loan
1/25/12 2.462 5/1/14-31 51 & ﬁi? 27562754 $ 23486502 *
12/18/14 20-3.125 3/1/15-34 3!? &%&? 1,290,000 1.280.000 °

Total Business-type Aclivities Debt @*@:‘*& i 3 24?776:522
WO [
{.:1?2“ {}@ :

\
' Issued 639% for capitai TIF purposes and i%“a% %?,g@%em%apﬁal purposes, * issued for a
sewer extension on W Ryan Rd, * issue@f@ Wat@} ég\i{&ng purposes.
% \ﬁ:}"" {;\\, P Q}

Annual principal and inierest paymen sc; n@ﬁﬁg@on general obligation nofes and bonds
payable are as follows: " o @j

<& N o
Annual principal and inferest paynmients to“ﬁ‘i‘atumy on general obligation notes and bonds
payable are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-{ype Activifies

31-Deg Frincipal interest Principal interest
2015 3 615000 § 3770681 % 1,1843246 § 588,933
2016 1,950,000 377,598 1,212,048 570,330
2017 3,010,600 297 388 1,240 535 540,393
2018 2320000 207 855 1,269723 508,746
2019 1,385,000 143,888 1,299,628 478,371
20620-24 3,675,000 178,699 5,893,158 1,888,898
2025-29 - - 7,899,313 965 255
2030-34 3,677 870 112,063

Total $ 12,835 00@ $ 1,582, 692 $ 24776522 § 5,653,094

The City's statutory debt limit and margin of indebtedness at December 31, 2014 are
$179 484,705 and $141,773,183, respectively. By City debt policy, the debt limit and margin of
indebtedness timit are $71,793,882 and $34,082 360, respectively.
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FunDs {(continued)
G. Lone TERM OBLIGATIONS {continued)
Conduit Debt Obligations

Eleven series of Industrial Revenue Bonds originally issued with an aggregate principal amount
of $104,992 GO0 are ouistanding with a December 31, 2014 balance of $34,344 454,

H. NeT POSITION/FUND BALANCES
Governmential Activities

Governmental activities net position reported on the government-wide statement of net position
at December 31, 2014 Include the following:

Net investiment in capital assets

Land $ 24849631
Construction in process \??‘* 423313
Cther capital assefs, net of accumulated dgbfé%a%iﬂn 89,511,740
Less: related long term debt outstandin {g\ o {8,852,807)
Net investment in capifal assets _,“_‘1\ ff?s ga@ 106,631,877
@ ‘Q mﬂq@’ _@}{”

: o LR N

Restricted for: o &}C}_ NelroN
Debt service T o e® 530,605
Utility improvement R ;;?x o 1,918450
Development 5”} T L 4,970,339
Library SO ey 598,752
Cther 560,306
Total restricted 7,828,452
Unrestricted 8,848,660
Total governmental activities net position $ 122,708,989
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NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continuad)
H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES {continuad)
Governmenial Fund Balances

Reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2014 include the following:

Nonspendabie fund balances

General Fund - Inventories and prepaid items $ 78,455
{eneral Fund - Advances 2,198,616
Library Fund - prepaid items 900

Total nonspendable $ 2,277 971

Resfricted fund balances
Debt Service . $ 546,238

Utility improvements 3 {@'35\3% 672,431
Development g 4,170,339
TIF Districts %@ Q@"ﬁ R 347,978
Donations {2@ @Q}ﬁ“ ‘\ﬁgg?\' Q@?ﬂ“ 122,550
Health services W o T @‘?} 175,220
Library services U g 596,277
Solid Waste VoA 216,385
Recreational services RoN %\_}?;{;’3 46,151
Total restricted 4V ?{%55"“ $ 8,803,569
Assigned Fund balances:
Capital Projects:
Capital Outiay $ 303,348
Equipment Replacement 2,189,673
Capital improvement 1,575,601
Street improvement 230,837
Purchases on Order 267 27C
Total Assigned fund biances $ 4,906,728
Unassigned fund balances
General Fund $ 6,148,771
Debt Service - Deficit (970,959}
St Martin's Fair - Deficit {11,552)
TiF Districts - Deficit {1,213,872)
Total Unassigned fund balances 3 3,852,388
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NOTE 3 - DeTAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (continued)
H. NET POSITION/FUND BALANCES (continued)
Business-iype Activities

Business-type activiies nel posiion reporied on the governmeni-wide stalement of net position
at December 31, 2014 include the following:

Net investment in capital assets

Land 3 521,225
Construction in process 351810
Cther capital assels, net of accumulated depreciation 87,694,422
Less: relaied long term debt ouistanding, net
of unspent bond proceeds -
Net investment in capital assels 88,567 257
Restricted for: \,,:‘g%
Other & O 313.558
Ry
Unrestricted P SR o o 4615530
uﬁ'\ﬁ) \:ﬁ"* - g‘?é“f' 3 -_—
b i {:E f,xﬂ{;\{". gm;;}
Total business-fype acﬁvit%eg?%ei : h\tj‘ :”} .,iji\%' $ 92895445
NS —
. %{N}} i ’iﬁgj (21 ‘
{:;} ;'“’\rwh \{‘:}
4 oy @C@
({» %%Q
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION
A. DeriNeD BeNEFIT PENSION PLANS
Wiscansin Retfirement System

All efigible protective {public safety} City of Franklin employees pariicipate in the Wisconsin
Retirement System ({"System™, a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined bhenefii public
employee relirement system {"PERS™). All such permanent employees sxpected to work over
600 hours & vear, for employees hired prior o July 1, 2011 and 1200 hours a vear for
empioyees hired prior afier that date are eligible to participate in the Systern. Covered
empioyees in the proteclive ogcupations calegory are reguired by siatule fo confribute 7.0% 1o
the pian both for proteciive occupations with social security, and for prolective occupations
without social security.

Employers may not make these contributions o the plan on hehalf of the protective occupation
employees uniess provided for by an existing coliective bargaining agreement. Empioyers are
required to coniribule an actuarially determined amount necessary fo fund the remaining
proiecied cost of future benefits. . {ﬂ}@%?‘s

<oy
The payroll for employees covered by the Systa@?\fqgﬁﬁe year ended December 31, 2014 was
$8,071,472 and the empioyer’s {olal payroll W@%{@M@f@f@ﬁh{e total required contribution for
the year ended December 31, 2014 was @‘%ﬁfﬁ%‘*’@?%@%& .06% of covered payroll. $565.003
was paid by employees while $892,{95 wWas paid byithe employer. Of the fotal required
coniribution, 100% was contribuied Eyggéﬁqmgﬁeﬁ /g@é?, Total contributions for the years ended
December 31, 2013, and 2012 weré«%Lé%i’,@”@ aad $1,860,118, respectively which equal the
required contributions for each year. @»ﬁff‘v @,@h *{;:%
N
The System provides that protec%\ié emp@@ees who retire at or after age 53 with 25 vears or
more of service or age 54 with less than 25 years of service are entitled fo receive retiremeant
beneflis. Prolective empioyees may retire at age 50 and receive actuarially reduced benefils.
The factors influencing the benefit are: {1) final average earnings, (2} years of creditable service
and (3) a formula factor. Final Average Eamings is the average of the prolective employee’s
three highest vears eamings. Protective employees terminating covered employment before
becoming eligible for refirement benefits may withdraw thelr contributions and, by doing so,
forfeit ali rights o any subsequent benefifs. For employees beginning participation after January
1, 1990 and no longer actively empioved on or affer April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of
five vears is required for eligibility for a refirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1880
and on or after Aprll 24, 1288 are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS
eiigible on or after July 1, 2011 must have five years of creditable service to be vested

The System aiso provides death and disabilily benefils for employees. Eligibility for and the
amount of all benefits is determined under Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The System
issues an annual financial report that may be obfained by writing 1o the Department of
Employee Trust Funds, P.O. Box 7831, Madison, WI 53707-7831.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
A. DemngD BENEFIT PENSION PLANS {continued)
PuBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
Pian Description

The City is also a participant in the City of Franklin Public Works Employees’ Pension Plan, a
single empioyer defined benefif pension plan covering eligible public works empioyees. The
assels of this Plan are administered by Principal Life Insurance Company. An annual financial
report may be obtained by writing 1o the plan adminisirator at Principal Financial Group, P.O.
Box 8683, Des Moines, A 50306-8386.

Employees affaining the age of 80 are entitled fo annual bensfits of 1.98% of average
compensation multiplied by the number of years of service subsequent fo January 1, 1956.
Average compensation is defined as the monthiy total pay plus salary deferrals, compensation
and overtime received for the three consecutive years out of the ten latest years which gives
the highest average. Employees may retire early a@@@eceive reduced benefils at age
55 with at least len years of service. ;’5:‘% e

S
e o7 )
Disability benefits eqguivalent to expecied ;?ﬁgeﬁ{%{:’taiﬁng@éaé refirement dafe are paid unti
normal refirement date, death or fecover’;f;%ﬁf i aotive,gmployee dies, his or her beneficiary

A

receives a iump-sum cash payment equsgl %qﬁ?:gs,@ﬁhj@ﬁént‘s accumutiation at date of death or

an annuity benefit deferred undi par{tﬁﬁ%@@e@:ﬁ%’%&%r&mem date.

If an employee ferminates his or he@%&é@%&@wﬁh the City, the employee has the option of
accepting either normal retirement-benefit 5t normal retirement date, or a lump-sum cash
payment of participant's vested accumulations. An employee becomes 50% vested after five
years of service and 100% vested after ten vears.

Empioyees make a non-elective and non-discretionary pension coniribution that in 2014 was
8.2% of payrcli. The City contributes all remaining amounts necessary to fund the pension plan.
Starling in 2010, the Cily uses the enlry age normal actuarial cost method.

Funding Policy

The City's funding policy has been o provide vearly contributions at actuarially determined rates
that, expressed as a percentage of covered pavroll, are designed io accumulate sufficient
assels {¢ pay benefils when due.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2014, the City’s required contribution of $293,632 was determined during a January 1, 2014
actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method. The Cily began to require employes
confributions, totaling $146,995 in 2014, During the year ended December 31, 2014, combined
coniributions totaling $293,632 were accrued. This resulied in the net pension cbligation being
reduced by $6,000. The required empioyer contribution amount represented 16.4% of current
year payrolt compared {o the 18.4% anticipated in the 2012 actuarial report.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
A. DerineD BeneriT PENSION PLANS {continued)
PuBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN {confinued)

Annuai Pension Cost {continued)

The entry age normal actuarial cost method does identify or separately amorfize unfunded
actuarial liabiliies. The unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over a 20 vear closed
period. Significant actuarial assumptlions include: (&) a rate of return on the investmeni of
present and future assels ranging of 7.5% compounded annually, (b) projecied salary increases
of 3.00% per year compounded annually, atfributable to inflalion applied using the level
percentage of projected payroll. The assumptions do not include post retirement benefit
increases. The acluarial value of assels was determined using fechnigues that smooth the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period.

Three Year Trend information

Annual Percentag 53}35 Nat
Year Pension of APC. 2" pension
Ending Cost {APC) Caﬁﬁabzﬁ?@d O%}%igatéon

12/31/2014 $ 287,632,067 183 9%%3 o8 " 78,880
12/31/2013  $ 303,998 %%2\53/ 2¥'8 84,880
12/31/2012 272@%8{} @‘* é&?’ 2%‘“ §1,338
<%>
The following table shows componergy o{;;%ﬁehé‘ ‘s annual pension cost for the vear, the
armount actually contributed fo the p éié am@cﬁg&@es in the City's net pension obligation:

& o
Annuai required co‘hirsi}utio’%& 3 283632
Inferest on net pension obligation 6,366
Adjustment {c annual required contribution {12,366)
Annual pension expense 287 832
Contributions made {293,632}
Decrease in net pension obiigation {6,600}
Net pension obligation - beginning of vear 84,880
Net pension ohligation - end of year 5 78,880
Annual Pension Cost
Funding progress
{(A) (8) {8 (B} (E} {F}
Actuarial UAAL as
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability (AALY AAL (UAAL} Ratio Covered  Covered Payroll
Date Value - Aggregate {B-{A)] FAY(B)] Payroll HCHWE)Y
172014 $ 6,175311 $7,081519 § 8858208 87% % 1,619,766 55%

The multi year trend information is located in the reguired supplementary information
immediately following the notes to the financial statements.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
B. DerinNeD CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Based on City ordinances all eligible City of Franklin non-protective employees {except public
works employees) participate in the City of Franklin Defined Contribution Plan {the “Plan™). The
Plan asseis are administered by the Principal Life Insurance Company.

Employess after completing six months of service with the City are eligible to participate. The
Plan requires the City fo make periodic confributions to each participant's account equal o 10%
of such pariicipant's annual compensation. Employees are required to make confribulions of 5%
of wages. A pariicipant’s accrued benefit for City contributions is 100% vested and non
forfefiable upon death, normal retirement, early retirement or permanent and total disability as
definred in the Pian. If employment is terminated for any other reason, each participant's accrued
benefit vesis af various percentages, based on years of service. During 2014, total contributions
of $388,969 or 10% of covered payroll were made. The City contributed $198.807 and
empioyees $182,362. The City may make amendmenis to the Plan.

C. POsT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS m@g%
o A
The City of Franklin administers a singie empio g}@ ¥ed benefit post employment benefit pian
through a irust. The City of Franklin Post Emﬁfoy@f‘é{t@?e&éﬁs Trust is accounted for on the
accrual basis of accounting and preseﬂ%eg@sgaﬁﬁﬂg{@%a}%%nd. Separale financial statements
are not prepared for the frust Reﬁreeﬁﬁq C%«i??ﬁm{g@r ions are recognized in the period in
which the contribufions are due. Go e (N @Q\
O F o &
City of Franklin eligible full fime en@@fe\:jﬁ\me%ﬁng minimum age and service requirements
may recelve group health care be;}’effts At g¥educed cost during the period from their normal
retirement date until they reach<age Gigﬁfhis resuits in an other post empioyment benefit
{OPEBR) cobiligation for those groups. These groups comumonly have higher medical costs than
anticipated in the blended premium rates. That differeniial is referred io as an implicit rate

subsidy.

Contribution requirements are eslablished by either City ordinance or collective bargaining and
may be amended only by the groups establishing the requirements. The City's pericdic
contribution is determined and fixed at the fime of retirement. The refires pays the balance of
the periodic blended premium. Ths eligibility for the benefit follows:

Employee Group # City Amount Age  Years Ssrvice
Non-represenied 35 75% of Premium al Relirement 62 20
Police 55 75% of Premium at Refirement 53 15
Dispatch 13 75% of 2005 Premium 62 24
Fire 43 75% of Premium at Retirement 53 20
DEW 29 75% of Premium at Refirement 50 15
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
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December 31, 2014

NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
C. PosT EMPiovymeENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS {continusd)

The City’s annual other post employment benefit {OPEB} expense is calculated based upon the
annual required contribution (ARC} of the City. An actuariai calculation by an actuary was used
to calculate the ARC and reiated information using the measurement method required by GASB
Statement No. 45 for employers with 200 or more total plan members. The ARC representis &
tevel of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected 1o cover the normal cost each year
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a closed period of 30 years. The following
table shows the components of the City's annual OPER cost for the year, the amount actually
coniributad to the frust and changes in the City's net OBEE obiigation for retiree health henefits:

Annual required contribution 3 551,718
Interest on net OPER obligation -
Adjustment to annual requized confribution -

Annual CPEB expense 551718
Contributions made {851,718}

Increase in net OPEB obligation B -
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year .y 0 -
Net OPEB obfigation: - end of year T 8 -

S S
gj&‘ \:;“’ a\/&,{“’ - V{é’;gj

The City's annual OPEB cost, the perc&gfag.gfbf &%ﬂ g&OPEB cost contributed to the trust and
the net OPLCE cbiigation for the cur;’gg@a%&@ﬁsﬁwf ars wers as follows:

Fiscal Annuﬁ?& & N centage of Net

Year nnual OPEB OPER

Ended tfost wé%r Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/2014 § 551,718 100.0% 3 -
12/31/2013 523,342 100.0% -
21312012 837,535 100.0% -

Funding progress:

{A) (8) (G D} {E) (F}
Actuatial UAAL as
Actuartal  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Percentage of
Yaluation Asset bty (AAL} AAL {UAALY Ratin Covered Covered Payroli
Date Value Projected unit credif HBHAY {AY(B]] Payroll HCW(EY
11/2014 33808837 $ 7,095,993 § 3,187.358 55% $ 12,155,777 28%

The multi year trend information is located in the required supplementary information
immediately following the notes to the financial statements. The projection of future benefits for
an ongoing benefit involves estimates for the value of reporied amounts and assumptions about
the probability of cccurrence of events far into the future. Exampies inciude assumptions about
future employment, moriality and the healthcare cost frend. Amounts determined regarding the
funding status of the trust and required contributions of the employer are subject o continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the fulure.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {continued)
€. PosT EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BeNEFITS (continued)

The schedule of funding progress, presented immediately following the focinotes, presenis
mult-year trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of trust assets is increasing
or decreasing over ime relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

The above schedules of employer coniributions present trend information about the amounds
contributed {o the trust by the City in comparison 1o the ARC, an amount actuarially determined
in accordance with the parameters of GASE Sfatement No. 43. The ARC represents a level of
funding that, ¥ paid on an ongoing basis, is projected o cover normal cost for each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial fiabiliies (or funding excess) over a closed period of thirty
Years.

Froiections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based upon the substantive plan {the
plan as understood by the City and plan members) and inciude the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation angd the hislorical patiern of shar;ng benefit cosis between the City
and plan members to that point. The methods and assupibtions used include techniques that
are designed fo reduce shori term volatiiity in acmaﬁ:at sictiued labilities and the actuarial value
of assets, consistent with the long term perspecig{“ﬁ o‘%ﬁe caicaiations

The trust's financial stalements are prepargé‘ﬁ ﬁ@% bas;s of accounting. Retiree and
CHy coniributions are recognized in iheperforzg% mﬁmt ons are due. The Cily has made &
formal commitment to provide the coR a;t%@hsg%qu’é’(s and refunds are recognized when due
and payable. investmenis are reptriedoat f&;r v%?ue with the valuaticn defermined by the
independent cusiodian of the asseis@i'ff véw %;9

& T8
The following significant assumpﬁ%ns we{@\t«ﬁ‘;ade

The actuarial valuation uses the projecied unit credit actuarial cost method.

The ARC was caiculated using the ievel percentage of payroli method, amortizing costs over a
ciosed period of 30 years. The remaining amortization period al December 31, 2014 was 23
years.

Based upon the expected retumn of the City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust under
the investment policy adopiad for the Trust, a discount rate of 7% was used.

The actuarial vaiue of the frust assets is determined using techniques that spread the impact of
short term volatility over a five year pericd.

Group health charges for aclives and refirees were used as the basis for calculation of the
present vatue of total benefits to be paid.

The expected healthcare trend rate of increase in group health charges was based upon the
recent experience of the City of Franklin self funded health care program. The frend rate
assumption of 8.5% for years one and two, 8.0% for years three and four, reduced to an
yilimale rate of 5.5% after thifeen vears, was used.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
C. PosTEMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS (coniinued)

The expecied long term payroll growih rate was assumed to be 3% which is the expected
inflation rate for the City.

No postretirement benefit increases other than salary increases are anficipated.

Rates of retirement, mortality and {ermination for reasons cther than retirement and death are
from the "Wisconsin Retirement System 2005-2011 Experience Study”.

Marital status at retirement was assumed fo be 75% with a spouse or dependents.
D. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City at times is party lo claims and legal proceedings. Although the cutcome of such
matters in not presently determinabie, it is the opinion of Ciiy management and the City attomey
that the likelihood is remole that any such daims or pro%@dmgs will have a material adverse
effect on the City's financial position. 22@
The City has received federal and siale gran{f“f‘“? g »érposes that are subject to review
and audit by the granior agencies. Such aaga {ﬁad %o requests for reimbursements to the
grantor agency for expenditures drsaiiawed mdem‘e ¥ of the grants. Management believes
such disallowances, if any, would be :{’&m&é@%iaé @Q Q,@

M\} . gZ o
The City has $2,122.647 in ouista @iff;g \gﬁhtfa%%uai commitments relating o variocus Public
Works projects and equipment P Hasés a?é@ecember 31, 2014, The City has encumbered
$§207 270 at year end due to va :dfccniacts@? purchase orders in place and the related services
committed and not vel received.

The Cily receives impact fees for new development projects. The fees are o be used o fund
specific projects within a specific period of time. in the event the projects are not completed or
the time period elapses, the City will be required to refund the impact fees o the current owners
of properties that the fees were originally coliecied.

Funding for the operating budget of the City comes from many sources, including property
taxes, grants and aids from other units of government, user fees, fines and permits and other
miscellanecus revenue. The State of Wisconsin provides a variety of aid and grant programs
that benefit the City. Those aid and grant programs are dependent on confinued approval and
funding by the Wisconsin governor and legislature, through their budget process. Any changes
made by the State to funding or eligibility of local aid programs could have a significant impact
on future operating results of the City.

E. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related o lorts, theft, damage or destruction of
assels, errors and omissions, natural disasters, and workers' compensation claims that the City
carries commercial insurance. No significant reductions in insurance coverage occurred for any
risk of loss in the past year, and seitled claims have not exceeded commercial coverage in any
cf the past three fiscal years.
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NOTE 4 - OTHER INFORMATION {cortinued)
E. RisK MANAGEMENT {continued)

The City also offers a group medical and dental insurance plan fo employees for which the City
is seif-insured, This aclivily is acccunted for in the City's Self Insurance Internal Service Fund.
Group medical and dental costs are charged o Cily departments and refirees participating in
the program. A third party administrator handles claims payments. The City carries stop loss
insurance for claims in excess of $60,000 per year per individual. Liabilities are reported when if
is probabie that claims have occurred and the amount of the claim can be reasonably estimated.
Liabiliies include an estimated amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported
{"IBNR").

Changses in the balance of claims payable for the two years ended December 31, 2014 are as
follows:

Current
Baiance Claims and )
Beginning of Changes in C@i‘ms Balance End
Year Estimaies /%“\ ?,Qyments of Year
fzi?
2014 & 372,106 $3 04&@34@ &gﬁ 047 834 $ 379,100

2013 $ 352,000 $36@‘§@SQ@ }Q};f"‘aa 003 $ 379,100

%, Sy
é&}v - Q} ;,,If::} {}\
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CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
{Unaudited)

December 31, 2014

PuBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Three Year Trend information

(A} (B} <) {2 {E} {F}
Actuarial LIAAL as

Actuarial Actuarial Aceorued Unfunded  Funded Percentage of
Vatuation Asset Liability (AAL)Y AAL (UAAL) Ralio Covered  Covered Payroli

Date Value - Aggregate HBA HAY(BY Fayroll HCWEN
112014 3 8,175311 $7081519 § 8868208 87% § 1619768 55%
11/2013 5,383,819 8,408,402 1,024,783  84% 1,688,291 61%
112012 5,046,223 5,748,942 653,719  85% 1,665,439 39%

CITY OF FRANKLIN POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS TRUST
SCHEDULE OF FURDING PROGRESS

Actuarial  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded {yFunded Percentage of
Valuation Asset Liability {AAL) AAL w% Ratio Covered Covered Payroll
Date Vaiue Proiected unit credit i{‘@}-(fﬁé}"é -, HAVEBY Payrell {(CHEY

A o ot
17412014  $3,908,637 $ ?’,Q%,QQSQ@% g;:a\?@‘;éféﬂ?} 85% $ 12,155777 26%
17412012 2,399,455 8,184,388 THE0335 20% 11,553,445 50%
1/4/2010 1,254,758 a,asa@?z s @;%1,@&?3‘ 21% 11,523,032 41%
GUSET oo
aﬂ@) "w\%;/’ %2;{%
SRS AR
R S
SN
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Nomnmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds accouni for the proceeds of specific revenue sources {other than
debt service or major capitai projects) that are restricted for specified purposes.

Library Operating Fund — This fund accounts for the budgetary operation of the Library.
Library Auxiliary Fund — This fund accounts for Library donations, fines and forfeitures.
Solid Waste Collection Fund — This fund accounts for sclid waste coliection activities.
Donation Fund — This fund accounts for donations received for specific purposss.

St Martin’s Fair Fund - This fund accounts for activities reiated fo the fammersifiea
market held the first Monday of the spring and summer months and the Labor Day
weekend.

Civic Celebrations Fund — This fund accounts for aclivity related to the City's Fourth of
July and other celebrations.
;M\lﬁ's
Grant Fund — The Cily reports its grant actmt@%s 1§3“€h§s fund. Grant activities include
Fire Department, Police Department, Hesalth @épa anent, Community Development Block
Grants and miscellaneous granis recew% i?:g@ ﬁ;ﬁ@ %{f@y that are not accounted for
eisewhers.

Capigﬁ’é@jeéﬁ% F§§163

Capiial Projects Funds account fg? fﬁ“mnmm ge%barces to be used for the acquisition or
consiruction of major capifal faci l;t@g“sfgpéhe;}ﬁan those financed by Proprietary Funds).

Capital Outlay Fund — This fuﬁ%d accejéms for the deparimental capital outlays. These
expenditures are funded by the tax levy, normally are less than $25.000 and are under
the direction of the department supervisor.

Equipment Replacement Fund — This fund aceounis for the rolling stock replacement
program that accumulates annual funding {from property faxes) for repiacement of
vehicles and similar equipment in lieu of using borrowed monies,

Capital Improvement Fund — This fund accounis for land acquisitions, building projects
and all public works projects and are usually funded with landfill siting revenues,
borrowed money or funding from some other source other than the tax levy.

Street Improvement Fund — This fund accounis for the activities of the lccal road
improvement program. Funding is provided by the tax levy and an every other year local
road improvement grant from the State, and landfill siting revenues.

Utility Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for water and sewer connection
fees and speciai assessments that are used for water and sewer construction projects.

Bevelopment Fund — This fund is used o account for impact fees restricted for use to
capital improvements.



